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2020
56,526,676.35 99.00
180,249.86 0.32
390,182.48 0.68
57,097,108.69
( 6,227 ) 100.00
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S.1.C.A.V.
2020

10,363,771.74 18.32
10,052,397.70 17.77
7,214,440.88 12.75
6,730,230.38 11.89
4,827,104.75 8.53
4,076,540.91 7.20
3,447,438.71 6.09
1,736,303.30 3.07
1,377,879.05 2.44
1,339,388.55 2.37
599,366.67 1.06
502,412.18 0.89
355,103.44 0.63
321,363.00 0.57
307,386.00 0.54
280,201.25 0.50
266,596.25 0.47
231,040.26 0.41
217,338.10 0.38
153,729.68 0.27
1,020,451.45 1.80
1,161,849.44 2.05
(566?§31333-69) 100.00

94/315



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

Goldman Sachs Funds SICAV -
1 | Goldman Sachs CoCos & Capital 398,103.221 122.50 48,767,593.05 141.99 56,526,676.35 99.00

Securities Portfolio

Goldman Sachs Funds, plc -
2 | Goldman Sachs US$ LIQUID 180,249.860 1.00 180,249.86 1.00 180,249.86 0.32

RESERVES FUND

S.1.C.A.V.
2020

1 | UBS GROUP AG 2049/12/29 7.000 14,500 | 107.07 1,552,511 | 114.46 1,659,612 2.93
2 | CREDIT SUISSE GROUP AG 2049/12/29 6.250 14,000 97.69 1,367,673 | 111.00 1,554,000 2.75
3 | BNP PARIBAS 2049/12/29 7.625 12,500 | 102.69 1,283,571 | 105.32 1,316,456 2.33
4 | BARCLAYS PLC 2049/12/29 7.875 10,000 | 102.38 1,023,829 | 109.00 1,090,000 1.93
5 | ING GROEP NV 2049/12/29 6.500 8,500 97.14 825,705 | 110.75 941,375 1.66
6 | PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC 2043/6/15 5.625 8,500 | 106.54 905,593 | 108.33 920,771 1.63
7 | INTESA SANPAOLO SPA 2024/6/26 5.017 8,500 | 100.03 850,270 | 106.25 903,125 1.60
8 | AXASA 2049/5/20 3.875 7,000 | 136.36 954,525 | 125.99 881,963 1.56
9 | BPCE SA 2025/3/15 4.500 8,000 | 102.52 820,130 | 109.21 873,688 1.54
10 | SOCIETE GENERALE 2049/12/29 7.375 8,000 98.85 790,806 | 106.50 851,970 1.51
11 | GMAC CAPITAL TRUST I 7.695 28,673 27.30 782,773 26.65 764,135 1.35
12 | HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 2049/12/29 6.875 7,000 | 103.56 724,938 | 104.92 734,472 1.30
13 | ING GROEP NV 2049/12/29 6.875 6,500 | 100.00 650,000 | 107.50 698,750 1.23
14 | RL FINANCE BONDS 2043/11/30 6.125 4,500 | 174.24 784,084 | 149.54 672,916 1.19
15 | BANCO SANTANDER SA 2099/12/31 7.500 6,000 99.26 595,555 | 111.87 671,211 1.19
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16 | ABN AMRO BANK NV 2025/7/28 4.750 6,000 | 100.02 600,139 | 110.78 664,683 1.17
17 | SOCIETE GENERALE 2025/4/14 4.250 6,000 | 100.16 600,974 | 107.14 642,813 1.14
18 | COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK UA 2026/7/21 3.750 6,000 99.71 598,238 | 106.48 638,853 1.13
19 | ABN AMRO BANK NV 2028/3/27 4.400 6,000 | 102.05 612,277 | 105.32 631,941 1.12
20 | BANCO SANTANDER SA 2099/12/31 6.750 5,000 | 129.94 649,687 | 123.21 616,043 1.09
21 | ROYAL BK SCOTLND GRP PLC 2049/12/29 8.625 5,500 | 104.51 574,808 | 108.50 596,750 1.05
22 | STICHTING AK RABOBANK 2049/12/29 6.500 4,000 | 143.22 572,879 | 146.85 587,419 1.04
23 | CREDIT AGRICOLE SA 2049/12/29 7.875 5,000 97.70 488,507 | 114.08 570,380 1.01
24 | BPCE SA 2024/7/21 5.150 5,000 | 102.81 514,053 | 111.09 555,443 0.98
25 | UNICREDIT SPA 2099/12/31 6.625 4,500 | 110.52 497,343 | 121.83 548,216 0.97
26 | M+G PLC 2051/10/20 5.625 3,500 | 131.03 458,609 | 155.64 544,754 0.96
27 | BANK OF AMERICA CORP 2049/12/29 6.300 4,500 | 104.93 472,189 | 116.26 523,177 0.92
28 | XLITLTD 2047/6/29 3.250 4,000 | 120.59 482,380 | 125.60 502,412 0.89
29 | METLIFE INC 2066/12/15 6.400 4,000 | 113.63 454,530 | 125.40 501,592 0.89
30 | ASSICURAZIONI GENERALI 2049/12/29 6.416 3,500 | 149.63 523,713 | 142.98 500,446 0.88
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2019 2020

2014 65,660,966.01 7,160,984,953 9.82 1,071
2015 61,888,675.93 6,749,578,997 9.45 1,031
2016 50,518,562.35 5,509,554,410 9.33 1,018
2017 32,436,287.13 3,537,501,474 9.43 1,028
2018 24,101,351.87 2,628,493,435 8.83 963
2019 22,695,683.18 2,475,191,208 9.03 985
2019 22,952,939.66 2,503,247,599 8.78 958
22,202,583.19 2,421,413,723 8.81 961

22,484,104.96 2,452,116,487 8.89 970

22,349,549.19 2,437,441,835 8.81 961

22,927,724.77 2,500,497,663 8.99 980

22,488,121.07 2,452,554 ,484 9.02 984

22,599,675.40 2,464,720,599 9.05 987

22,695,683.18 2,475,191,208 9.03 985

10 22,721,790.93 2,478,038,519 9.08 990

11 21,682,551.51 2,364,699,068 9.10 992

12 21,159,235.34 2,307,626,206 9.13 996

2020 21,129,980.47 2,304,435,670 9.20 1,003
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2014 31,627,940.17 3,449,343,155 9.91 1,081
2015 32,563,231.78 3,551,346,058 10.07 1,098
2016 22,871,039.01 2,494,315,514 10.54 1,149
2017 12,170,077.81 1,327,268,686 11.29 1,231
2018 8,382,724.95 914,219,983 11.21 1,223
2019 8,091,013.97 882,405,984 12.20 1,331
2019 9,133,582.47 996,108,504 11.44 1,248
9,220,169.80 1,005,551,718 11.55 1,260

8,378,462.30 913,755,098 11.70 1,276

8,350,917.46 910,751,058 11.67 1,273

8,510,263.46 928,129,333 11.97 1,305

8,179,001.10 892,001,860 12.06 1,315

8,250,251.17 899,772,393 12.16 1,326

8,091,013.97 882,405,984 12.20 1,331

10 8,184,265.76 892,576,024 12.33 1,345

11 8,194,060.05 893,644,189 12.41 1,353

12 8,261,118.84 900,957,621 12.51 1,364

2020 8,243,336.10 899,018,235 12.67 1,382
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2014 277,797.57 33,419,048 9.81 1,180
2015 1,606,923.62 193,312,911 9.42 1,133
2016 1,684,003.63 202,585,637 9.19 1,106
2017 5,521,358.24 664,219,396 9.10 1,095
2018 5,709,418.25 686,843,015 8.42 1,013
2019 4,128,720.11 496,685,029 8.51 1,024
2019 5,377,279.29 646,886,699 8.33 1,002
5,225,200.26 628,591,591 8.36 1,006

4,562,581.13 548,878,510 8.41 1,012

4,519,999.97 543,755,996 8.33 1,002

4,536,889.72 545,787,833 8.50 1,023

4,546,050.29 546,889,850 8.51 1,024

4,462,813.88 536,876,510 8.53 1,026

4,128,720.11 496,685,029 8.51 1,024

10 4,147,038.25 498,888,701 8.54 1,027

11 4,017,241.60 483,274,164 8.56 1,030

12 4,026,386.43 484,374,288 8.57 1,031

2020 4,056,254.84 487,967,457 8.64 1,039
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2014 723,374.29 87,021,927 9.90 1,191
2015 1,098,421.94 132,140,159 10.05 1,209
2016 3,580,745.85 430,763,726 10.40 1,251
2017 4,601,464.81 553,556,217 10.94 1,316
2018 5,620,597.75 676,157,909 10.59 1,274
2019 5,113,475.24 615,151,071 11.17 1,344
2019 5,177,777.22 622,886,600 10.67 1,284
5,214,153.40 627,262,654 10.74 1,292

5,268,793.82 633,835,897 10.85 1,305

5,167,984.35 621,708,517 10.79 1,298

5,178,523.79 622,976,412 11.04 1,328

5,077,821.71 610,861,952 11.10 1,335

5,108,396.64 614,540,116 11.16 1,343

5,113,475.24 615,151,071 11.17 1,344

10 5,152,990.84 619,904,798 11.26 1,355

11 4,612,005.70 554,824,286 11.32 1,362

12 4,637,445.19 557,884,656 11.38 1,369

2020 4,686,863.75 563,829,709 11.50 1,383
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2014 1,851,977,449 9,814
2015 3,039,653,388 9,406
2016 3,133,013,456 9,199
2017 2,183,185,388 9,135
2018 1,656,155,821 8,469
2019 1,572,219,609 8,579
2019 1,660,712,818 8,380
1,628,363,415 8,410

1,633,393,215 8,474

1,618,222,377 8,391

1,645,903,384 8,561

1,593,858,657 8,575

1,533,615,804 8,598

1,572,219,609 8,579

10 1,561,730,694 8,618

11 1,603,101,435 8,634

12 1,562,201,245 8,651

2020 1,564,485,174 8,715
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2014 2,755,146,996 9,903
2015 3,082,030,214 10,029
2016 2,697,265,571 10,402
2017 1,055,134,547 10,964
2018 688,846,392 10,641
2019 462,521,374 11,251
2019 603,473,192 10,722
607,768,111 10,798

582,491,836 10,919

575,772,336 10,851

589,504,310 11,110

498,035,921 11,167

461,946,297 11,237

462,521,374 11,251

10 461,228,836 11,342

11 404,301,387 11,403

12 385,994,884 11,465

2020 390,202,337 11,590
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2014 10 0.090 10
2014

2014 10 0.540 59
2015

2015 10 0.540 59
2016

2016 10 0.540 59
2017

2017 10 0.540 59
2018

2018 10 0.540 59
2019

2019 0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

0.045 5

10 0.045 5

11 0.045 5

12 0.045 5

2020 0.045 5
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2014 10 .000 0

2014

2014 10 .000 0

2015

2015 10 .000 0

2016

2016 10 .000 0

2017

2017 10 .000 0

2018

2018 10 .000 0

2019

2019 .000 0
.000 0
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2014 10 0.090 11
2014

2014 10 0.540 65
2015

2015 10 0.540 65
2016

2016 10 0.540 65
2017

2017 10 0.405 49
2018

2018 10 0.360 43
2019

2019 0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

0.030 4

10 0.030 4

11 0.030 4

12 0.030 4

2020 0.030 4
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2014 10 .000 0

2014

2014 10 .000 0

2015

2015 10 .000 0

2016

2016 10 .000 0

2017

2017 10 .000 0

2018

2018 10 .000 0

2019

2019 .000 0
.000 0
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2014 10 90
2014

2014 10 540
2015

2015 10 540
2016

2016 10 540
2017

2017 10 405
2018

2018 10 360
2019

2019 30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

10 30

11 30

12 30

2020 30
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2014 10 0
2014
2014 10 0
2015
2015 10 0
2016
2016 10 0
2017
2017 10 0
2018
2018 10 0
2019

2019 0
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2014 10 0.90 0.90 1.00 1.00 0.96 0.97
2014
2014 10 1.73 1.61 1.53 1.52 1.35 1.27
2015
2015 10 4.44 4.67 3.29 3.48 3.54 3.72
2016
2016 10 6.86 7.12 4.90 5.19 5.17 5.40
2017
2017 10 0.64 0.71 3.02 3.20 2.86 2.95
2018
2018 10 8.38 8.83 5.34 5.48 5.55 5.73
2019
x 100
10
10
10,000
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2014 10 6,860,220.527 172,050.000 6,688,170.527
014 (6,860,220.527) (172,050.000) (6,688,170.527)
2014 10 2,648,959.841 2,785,773.662 6,551,356.706
5016 (2,648,959.841) (2,785,773.662) (6,551, 356.706)
2015 10 970, 846.866 2,105,055.580 5,417,147.992
5016 (970,846 .866) (2,105,055.580) (5,417,147.992)
2016 10 632,440.363 2,609,893.378 3,439,694.977
5017 (632,440.363) (2,609,893.378) (3,439,694.977)
2017 10 465,779.069 1,175,102.461 2,730,371.585
5018 (465,779.069) (1,175,102.461) (2,730,371.585)
2018 10 344,950.172 562,996.461 2,512,325.296
5010 (344,950.172) (562,996.461) (2,512,325.296)
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2014 10 3,192,249.333 0.000 3,192,249.333
014 (3,192,249.333) (0.000) (3,192,249.333)
2014 10 1,369,395.327 1,328,411.310 3,233,233.350
5016 (1,369,395.327) (1,328,411.310) (3,233, 233.350)
2015 10 137,231.756 1,200,450.583 2,170,014.523
5016 (137,231.756) (1,200,450.583) (2,170,014.523)
2016 10 256,294.464 1,348,759.643 1,077,549.344
5017 (256,294.464) (1,348,759.643) (1,077,549.344)
2017 10 54,009.149 383,970.701 747,587.792
5018 (54,009.149) (383,970.701) (747,587.792)
2018 10 76,090.417 160,587.957 663,090.252
5010 (76,090.417) (160,587.957) (663,090.252)
2014 10 28,319.242 0.000 28,319.242
014 (28,319.242) (0.000) (28,319.242)
2014 10 142,345.334 0.000 170,664.576
501 (142,345.334) (0.000) (170,664.576)
2015 10 21,931.780 9,339.233 183,257.123
S0le (21,931.780) (9,339.233) (183,257.123)
2016 10 450,486.004 27,258.025 606,485.102
5017 (450,486.004) (27,258.025) (606,485.102)
2017 10 239,929.490 168,656.439 677,758.153
5018 (239,929.490) (168, 656.439) (677,758.153)
2018 10 2,704.421 195,256.649 485,205.925
5010 (2,704.421) (195,256.649) (485,205.925)
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2014 10 73,073.691 0.000 73,073.691
014 (73,073.691) (0.000) (73,073.691)
2014 10 85,548.016 49,276.690 109,345.017
5016 (85,548.016) (49,276.690) (109,345.017)
2015 10 287,407.634 52,291.555 344,461.096
S0le (287,407.634) (52,291.555) (344,461.096)
2016 10 283,478.935 207,142.594 420,797.437
5017 (283,478.935) (207,142.594) (420,797.437)
2017 10 284,718.221 174,980.497 530,535.161
5018 (284,718.221) (174,980.497) (530,535.161)
2018 10 21,589.001 94,470.513 457,653.649
5010 (21,589.001) (94,470.513) (457,653.649)
2014 10 188,712.194 0.000 188,712.194
014 (188,712.194) (0.000) (188,712.194)
2014 10 164,057.281 29,602.034 323,167.441
5015 (164,057.281) (29,602.034) (323,167.441)
2015 10 102,460.775 85,029.425 340,598.791
S0le (102,460.775) (85,029.425) (340,598.791)
2016 10 69,782.514 171,379.723 239,001.582
5017 (69,782.514) (171,379.723) (239,001.582)
2017 10 41,089.951 84,544.967 195,546.566
5018 (41,089.951) (84,544.967) (195,546 .566)
2018 10 22,211.399 34,496.556 183,261.409
5010 (22,211.399) (34,496.556) (183,261.409)
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2014 10 278,206.383 0.000 278,206.383
014 (278,206.383) (0.000) (278,206.383)
2014 10 186,801.647 157,683.690 307,324.340
5016 (186,801.647) (157,683.690) (307,324.340)
2015 10 33,038.987 81,065.594 259,297.733
S0le (33,038.987) (81,065.594) (259,297.733)
2016 10 35,711.700 198,775.320 96,234.113

5017 (35,711.700) (198,775.320) (96,234.113)
2017 10 5,371.697 36,870.594 64,735.216

5018 (5.371.697) (36,870.594) (64,735.216)
2018 10 2,278.027 25,903.988 41,109.255

5010 (2,278.027) (25,903.988) (41,109.255)
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
( ) C ) ( ) C )
©, 59,445,946 6,483,175 65,962,066 7,193,823
(b) 1,642 179 515 56
©) 310,000 33,809
257,476 28,080
(d),12 902,852 98,465 1,007,486 109,876
60,660,440 6,615,628 67,227,543 7,331,836
©, 632,475 68,978 589,994 64,345
111 12
(B 224,037 24,433
() 122,712 13,383 137,228 14,966
(d) 122,712 13,383 137,228 14,966
41,243 4,498 40,442 4,411
30,248 3,299 14,081 1,536
) 8,714 950 4,893 534
® 8,709 950 8,782 958
© 4,602 502 5,146 561
Q) 2,118 231 1,289 141
©) 12,100 1,320
371 40
974,015 106,226 1,175,220 128,169
59,686,425 6,509,402 66,052,323 7,203,666
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
) C D ( ) « )
() 17,473 1,906 13,499 1,472
() 6,622 722 3,475 379
2,862,439 312,178 5,730,073 624,922
(615,330) (67,108) (1,286,251) (140,279)
3,666,402 399,858 (4,814,146) (525,031)
(36,329) (3,962) 155,246 16,931
5,901,277 643,593 (198,104) (21,605)
@) 498,516 54,368 626,407 68,316
) 498,516 54,368 626,407 68,316
109,021 11,890 53,786 5,866
40,350 4,401 40,756 4,445
() 34,524 3,765 42,712 4,658
©) 28,233 3,079 53,300 5,813
16 22,915 2,499 34,332 3,744
@) 18,695 2,039 23,490 2,562
©) 6,117 667 7,830 854
(b) 1,192 130
3,065 334 2,201 240
1,259,952 137,410 1,512,413 164,944
4,641,325 506,183 (1,710,517) (186,549)
(h),10 2,263,494 246,857 2,857,397 311,628
2,377,831 259,326 (4,567,914) (498,177)
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
( ) « ) ( ) C )
66,052,323 7,203,666 85,340,850 9,307,273
6,065,010 661,450 15,154,534 1,652,753
(14,808,739) (1,615,041)  (29,875,147) (3,258,184)
2,377,831 259,326 (4,567,914) (498,177)
59,686,425 6,509,402 66,052,323 7,203,666
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
( ) « ) ( ) « )
2,377,831 259,326 (4,567,914) (498,177)
/C ) () ) 8,435 920
(h),10 2,263,494 246,857 2,857,397 311,628
(17,473) (1,906) (13,499) (1,472)
(6,622) (722) (3,475) (379)
1,192 130
4,617,226 503,555 (1,717,864) (187, 350)
)/

(e) (310,000) (33,809)
257,476 28,080 (248,384) (27,089)
490 53
6,516,120 710,648 19,576,304 2,134,992

/( ):

111 12 (1,943,916) (212,003)
16,167 1,763 (3,568) (389)
) 3,821 417 (12,363) (1,348)
(e) 829 90 (2,463) (269)
801 87 524 57

371 40
(b) ™3 ® (2,439) (266)
C)) (544) (59) (1,463) (160)
©) (12,100) (1,320) (7,200) (785)
@) (14,516) (1,583) (225,836) (24,630)
() (14,516) (1,583) (39,028) (4,256)
42,481 4,633 (262,303) (28,607)
/( ) 11,103,654 1,210,965 15,110,491 1,647,950
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2019 30 2018 30

( ) « D ( ) C D
17,473 1,906 13,499 1,472
5,495 599 2,960 323
(1,192) (130)
11,126,622 1,213,469 15,125,758 1,649,615
6,065,010 661,450 17,106,948 1,865,684
(15,032,776) (1,639,475)  (29,651,110) (3,233,750)
(2,263,494) (246,857) (2,857,397) (311,628)
(11,231,260) (1,224,881)  (15,401,559) (1,679,694)
4 0 (8,435) (920)
(104,634) (11,411) (284,236) (30,999)
1,007,486 109,876 1,291,722 140,875
902,852 98,465 1,007,486 109,876
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2019 30
99.93
2010 12 17
8,606,588 22,098,631
19,431,955 39,636,773
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2019 30
2019 30
59,428,487 59,428,487
17,459 17,459
59,428,487 17,459 59,445,946
2019 30
2019 30
632,475 632,475

632,475 632,475
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2018 30
2018 30
65,950,755 65,950,755
11,311 11,311
65,950,755 11,311 65,962,066
2018 30
2018 30
589,994 589,994
589,994 589,994
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
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2019 30 2018 30
2019 30
@ @ ( ) ( )(1) @
1,173 (316,330) (315,157) 310,000 (5.157)
8,039 (80,868) (72,829) (72,829)
(235,166) (235,166) (235,166)
(111) (111) (111)
8,247 8,247 8,247
17,459 (632,475) (615,016) 310,000 (305,016)
()
©)
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2018 30
¢ ) @
o) ) «C ) ®
1,136 1,136 1,136
1,001 (14,302) (13,301) (13,301)
2,023 2,023 2,023
1,523 (295, 628) (294,105) (294,105)
5,628 (280,064) (274,436) (274,436)
11,311 (589,994) (578,683) (578,683)
()
)
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(b
1974 11
0.05
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(e
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2017 30 606,485 420,797 239,002 96,234 3,439,695 1,077,549
239,929 284,718 41,090 5,372 465,779 54,009
(168,656)  (182,104)  (84,545)  (36,871) (1,190,552)  (383,970)
2018 30 677,758 523,411 195,547 64,735 2,714,922 747,588
2,705 21,590 22,211 2,278 344,950 76,090
(195,257)  (87,347)  (34,497)  (25,904)  (547,547)  (160,588)
2019 30 485,206 457,654 183,261 41,109 2,512,325 663,090
2019 30 2018 30
4,500,886 8.51 6,630,196 8.42
5,574,408 11.17 6,439,451 10.59
14,546,699 8,579 14,577,918 8,468
4,279,402 11,250 6,063,407 10,639
22,694,454 9.03 23,960,262 8.83
8,090,576 12.20 8,381,089 11.21
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31.85 31.25
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2019 30
900,934 1,918 902,852
59,445,946 59,445,946
311,642 311,642
900,934 59,759,506 60,660,440
632,475 632,475
111 111
341,429 341,429
974,015 974,015
2018 30
1,003,521 3,965 1,007,486

65,962,066 65,962,066

257,476 257,476
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2,595,751 26,924,174 27,164,354 667,062 57,351,341
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2,648 2,648
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0.60 0.47
2.12 5.28
100.00 100.00
2019 30 2018 30
2019 2018 30
2019 2018 30

12

165/315



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

166/315



«

100

167/315

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
o 1,918 0.00() 3,966 0.01
® 900,934 1.51
® 1,003,520 1.52
902,852 1.51 1,007,486 1.53
® 310,000 0.52
310,000 0.52
)
@
®
©) 0.005
13
2019 30 2018 30
0.917263 0.860956
108.07500 113.58500
14
2019 30 2018 30
15
2019 30 2018 30
16
2019 30
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2019 30

431,469 10 58,545,978 98.09
882,509 X 882,509 1.48
59,428,487 99.57

14/11/2019  JPY 21,890,260 USD 204,016 Citibank NA (868) (0.00)
(868) (0.00)

1471172019 usD 49,861 JPY 5,350,811 Citibank NA 203 0.00
14/11/2019 usb 343,196  JPY 36,115,000 JPMorgan Chase & Co 8,039 0.01
14/11/2019 usb 431,678  JPY 45,627,000 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 8,247 0.02
27/11/2019  USD 60,604 EUR 54,472 Citibank NA 970 0.00
17,459 0.03
27/11/2019 EUR 4,645,298 USD 5,165,525 JPMorgan Chase & Co (80,093) (0.14)
27/11/2019  EUR 4,645,298  USD 5,167,675 Citibank NA (82,244) (0.14)
14/11/2019  JPY 6,630,000 USD 61,639 Royal Bank of Canada (11D (0.00)
14/11/2019 JPY 19,323,462 USD 180,102 JPMorgan Chase & Co (775) (0.00)
14/11/2019  JPY 1,032,746,906 USD 9,819,347 Merrill Lynch (235,166) (0.39)
14/11/2019 JPY 1,054,637,167 USD 10,020,547 Citibank NA (233,218) (0.39)

(631,607)  (1.06)
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JPY
usb
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59,428,487 99.57
(868)  (0.00)
17,459 0.03
(631,607)  (1.06)

872,954 1.46

59,686,425 100.00
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2018 30

536,609 10 65,509,180 99.18

441,575 X 441,575 0.67

65,950,755 99.85

Australia & New Zealand

24/10/2018 usb 53,403 JPY 5,927,027 Bankiing Group Ltd 1,136 0.00
24/10/2018 usb 80,699  JPY 8,978,406 Merrill Lynch 1,523 0.00
24/10/2018 usD 126,479  JPY 14,113,142 Deutsche Bank AG 2,023 0.01
24/10/2018 usD 224,016  JPY 24,765,000 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 5,628 0.01
21/11/2018 usD 150,826  EUR 128,473 Citibank NA 1,001 0.00

11,311 0.02
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21/11/2018 EUR 5,716,572 usb 6,680,952 Citibank NA (14,302) (0.02)
21/11/2018 EUR 5,716,572 usb 6,681,393 Merrill Lynch (14,743) (0.02)
24/10/2018 JPY 1,197,376,076 usb 10,839,857 Merrill Lynch (280,885) (0.43)
24/10/2018  JPY  1,197,376,077 USD 10,838,994 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (280,021)  (0.42)
21/11/2018 usb 23,658 EUR 20,324 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (43) (0.00)
(589,994) (0.89)
65,950,755 99.85
11,311 0.02
(589,994) (0.89)
680,251 1.02
66,052,323 100.00
EUR
JPY
usb
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2018

Notes 30-Sep-2018  30-Sep-2018

uso uso
Assets

Current Assets

Financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss 3c), 4 58 445 848 65,962 066
Dividend receivable 3B 1,642 515
Diue from brokers:

Collateral amounts 3 e 310,000 _—
Recevable for imvestments sold 2 — 257 476
Cash and cash equivalents 3 (d), 12 902 852 1,007 485
Total Assets 60,680,440 BT, 227,543
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3c), 4 632 475 589 &04
Fayable for imvestments purchased 2 11 —
Payable for Units redeemed 3(g) B — 224 a7
Imvestment management fees payable T (a) 122,712 137,228
Distribution fees payable 7 (d) 122712 137,228
Audit fees payable 41,243 40, 442
Legal fees payable 30,248 14,081
Custodian service fees payable 70 8714 4893
Manager fees payable 7ib) 8708 8782
Agent company fees payable 7 () 48602 5145
Trustee fees payable 7ie) 2118 1,288
Administration and transfer agent fees payable 7iz) -_— 12,100
Miscellaneous fees payable 371 —
Total Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 974,015 1,175,220
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 50,686,425 66,052,323
Thie sccompanying notas form an integral part of the finsncal siEmants. -]
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Notes 30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018

UsD UsD
Income
Interest income (b 17,473 13,499
Dividend income 3 G622 3475

Met realized gainf{loss) on financial assets and financial
liabilties at fair value through prafit or loss on
Investments 2,862 439 5,730,073
Fareign curfency (615,330) (1,286,251)
Met change in unrealized gaindloss) on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on:

Ivestments 3,666, 402 {4,814 148)

Fareign currency (36.329) 155 246
Met Incomef{Loss) 5,901,277 (198,104)
Operating Expenses
Imvestment management fees 7 (a) 488 518 526 407
Distribution fees 7 {d) 4898 516 G626, 407
Legal fees 108,021 53 786
Audit fees 40,350 40,756
Manager fees T (b 34524 4272
Administration and transfer agent fees 7y 28,233 53,300
Custodian senvice fees 7N 22915 34,332
Agent company fees 7ig) 18,695 23,490
Trustee feas T (e &17 7,830
Interest expense 35 —_ 1,182
Miscellaneous expense 3,085 2,201
Total Operating Expenses 1,269,952 1,512,413
Met Incomef{Loss) from Operations 4,641,325 {1,710,517)
Finance Costs:
Distributions to participating Unitholders 3im), 10 2263 4594 2 EST aa7
Change in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations 2377.80 (4,567,914)
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 10
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Statermments of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Motes  30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018

usD usp
Met Assets Attrnibutable to Holders of Redeemable Farticipating
Units at Beginnming of Year 66,052 323 85,340 850
Total Proceeds from redeemable participating Units issued B 6,065 010 15,154,534
Total Payments for redeemable paricipating Units redeemed g (14,808, 739) (29.875.147)
Change in net assets attnbutable to holders of redeemabie
2377 831 (4,567 914)

participating Units from cperations
Met Asseats Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at Year End 59,886,425 66,052,323

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smlements. bk
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

Notes 30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
usD usD

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

paricipating Units from operations 237783 {4,567 914,
Adjustment for:
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash (4) B 435
Distributions to participating Unitholders 3(h), 10 2263 4394 2 857 397
Interest income (17,473) (13,458
Dividend income (5,822) (3,475)
Interest expense — 1,192
Total 4,617,226 {1,717,864)

Met (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Due from brokers:

Collateral amourts 3e) {310,000) —
Receivable for investments sold 2 257 476 (248 384)
OCther assets _ 490
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,516,120 19,576,304
Met Increasel/{Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Payable for investments purchased 2 1M (1,843 916)
Legal fees payable 16,167 (3,568)
Custodian service fees payable Tih 3,821 {12,363)
Trustee fees payable 7 (e 829 [2,453)
Audit fees payable 801 524
Miscellaneous fees payable KR —_
Manager fees payable (=] (73 (2, 435)
Agent company fees payable Tilg) (S44) (1,463)
Adrministration and transfer agent fees payable 7ic) (12,100 (7.200)
Imvesiment management fees payable 7{a) {14.516) (225 836)
Distribution fees payable 7 (d) (14,515 {39, 028)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 42 481 (262 303)
Cash Provided by/{Used in) Operating Activities 11,103,654 15,110,481
Interest received 17,473 13,499
Dividend received 5,495 2,960
Interest paid — (1,182)
Met Cash Provided by/{Used in) Operating Activities 11,126,622 15,125,758
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Units issued 60685010 17,106 248
Fayments for redeamable participating Units redeemed (15,032 778) (29,651, 110)
Distributions to participating Unitholders (2,253 484) {2,857 387)
Met Cash Provided by'{Used in) Financing Activities (11.231,260) (15.401,553)
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash 4 8. 435
Met increase/{decreasea) in cash (104 634) (284 238)
Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,007 485 1,261,722
Cash and cash equivalents at End of Year 802,852 1,007,486
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 12

177/315



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Neotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2019

Organization

G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund (the "Sub-Trust) is a sub-trust of MUGC G5 Cayman Fund (the “Trust?). The Trust
i an open-ended exempted umbrella trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Law (2011 Revsion) of the
Cayman |slands dated 10 Febmuary 2010 (as supplemented or amended from tirme to time, the “Trust Deed”) executed
by Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee’) and Mitsubshi UFJ) Investor Services &
Banking (Luxembcurg) S.A. {the *Manager”). The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds Law (Revised).

Goldman Sachs Asset Management International ("{GSAMI), a related party to the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant to an investment management agreement (Management Agreement’) with the Sub-Trust. The
Investment Manager is responsibie for overseeing and monfioning the day-to-day operations of the Sub-Trust's alfairs
regarding their investmeants

The Investment Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management L P ("GSAM7) and Goldman Sachs
Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Lid. ("GS Singapore’), each a related party of the Goldman Sachs Group, Ing.
{"Goldman Sachs’) as Investment Advisors pursuant o a Masber Intercompany Sub-Advisory Agreement and a Master
Intercompany Sub-Advisony and Participating Affilate Services Agreament, respectively (callectivaly, the “Investment
Advisory Agreements”). Under the Investment Advisory Agreements, GSAM and GS Singapore provide the Sub-Trust
with continuous professional investment advice, and effects and manages all transactions on behalf of the Sub-Trust
Af; compensation for services rendered undar the Investriant Advisary Agreements, GSAM and GS Singapore recaive
afee.

The Sub-Trust commenced operations and launched Unit classes on the following dates:

Cilass of Unils Commancemant Dales
Ciass EUR (MDist) 10 June 2014
Class EUR (SDist) 10 June 2014
Class JPY (MADNSE) 10 Juifie 2014
Class JPY (SOist) 10 June 2014
Class USD (MDist) 10 June 2014
Class USD (SDist) 10 June 214

The financial statements are presented in USD ("United States Dellar”), the Sub-Trust's funclional and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considers that this currency most accurately represents the econamic effects of the
undeddying transactions, events and conditions of the Sub-Trust

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Sub-Trust, (the “Feeder Fund”) is to achieve attractive total retwrns consistng of income
generation and capital appreciation through investment into a diversiied portfolo mainly consisting of Contingent
Capital Secunties (or Contingent Convertible Securites, "CoCos™) and preferred securities, perpetual subordinated
debt securities and subordinated term debt securiies (collectively, "Capital Secuntes”) issued by global financial
institutions and cther entibes, including banks and insurance companes, through irvestment into the Goldman Sachs
Cocos & Capital Secunties Portfolo (the “Master Fund’). In relation to CoCos, these are a type of captal securities
which terms provide that all or a part of principal may be written-down, or, which may be converted into equity, under
cortam triggering events (e.g.. capital adequacy ratio falls below a pre-set himdt) in order to maintain linancal solvency
of a financial institution.

The mvestment chjective of the Master Fund is to achieve attractive total returns consisting of income generation and
capstal appreciation through imvestment mainly in fixed income sacurities (across both Eewestment grade and sub-
imvestment grade sectors), equity andfor equity related securitses and financial derivative instruments,

Fixed income securiies may include all types of debt securities and obligations subject to such limitations as may
apply under Luxemiboung law and the Master Fund's investment policy, induding, but not limited to, fixed and floating
rite, sendor and subordingted corporate debt abligatons (such as bonds, Calos, debenfures, notes and commerncial
paper), Brady bonds and other debt issued by governments, their agencies and instrumentalites, or by central banks,
converbble debt securiies and obligations, assel- backed securies, mortpage-backed secunbes, collateralized loan
obligatons, collateralized dabt obligations, preferred securitiss, emarging market debt, reverse repurchase agreements
with respect to securites issued by governments and central banks and loan participations andlor loan assignments
provided such instruments are consistent with Money Market Instruments nosmally dealt in the money market, are liquid
and have a value that may be accurately determined at any time m compliance with applicable |aws and regulations.
The Master Fund may invest in excess of 20% of its assets in mortgage and asset-backed securities.

13
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G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

2, Investment Objective (continued)

Equity securities may include, but are not limited to, equity andlor equity related transferable securities, which includes
common stock, warrants and ather rights to acquire stock, ADRs, EDRs and GDRs.

The Imestment Managers of the Master Fund and the Feedar Fund are the same.

The Sub-Trust through investment into the Master Fund may substantially invest in straight corporate bonds, preferred
securities, subordinated debt securities and CoCos issued by entities except for financial instifutions. Substantial level
of imvestments of the Master Fund in Capital Secunties and CoCeos may be reduced due to investment conditions and
other factars,

There can be no assurance that the investment objective of the Sub-Trust will be achieved or that its portfolio design
and risk monitoring o hedging strategies will be successiul,

The significant accounting policies of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are consistent.

The Feeder Fund hcids 89.91% of the Master Fund's net assets at 30 September 2019 and 20.93% of the Master Fund's
net assets at 30 Septernber 2018, The: Master Fund is a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Funds SICAV (the “Caormpany™), an
imvestment company registered in Luxembourg pursuant to Part | of the Law of 17 December 20100

The Feeder Fund invests salely inta the Master Fund. Total subserptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund
irto the Master Fund during the year ended 30 September 201 Swere USD 5,606,588 and USD 22,086,631, respectively.
As at 30 September 2019, there were no capital commitment obfigations and the Sub-Trust had USD nil due to the
Master Fund for unsettled purchases and USD nil due from the Master Fund for unsetited sales. Total subscriptions
and redemptons made by the Feeder Fund into the Master Fund during the year ended 30 Seplember 2018 ware
USD 19,421,955 and USD 30,638,773, respectively, As at 30 September 2018, there were no capital commitment
ohligations and the Sub-Trust had LSD ndl due to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and USD 257 476 due from
the Master Fund for unsetiled sales.

The Sub-Trust invests into the Master Fund by purchasing the Master Fund's redeemable participating shares. The
Master Fund allows redemptions of these shares on any business day.

Mevements in the fair valwe of the Master Fund's portfolio and coresponding movements in the fair value of the Master
Fund may expose the Sub-Trust to a loss.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Financial Statements
Basis of Preparation of Financial Sfatemeants
The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ((IFRE).
The financel statements have been prepared undes the historical cost convention as modfied by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, The preparation of

the mancial stalements reguires managerment to make certain estimates and assumptions that may affect the amaunts
reported in the financial staternents and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

i Hew standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 and were effective or applicable ta the Sub-Trust

There are no new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been adopted by the
Sub-Trust.

14
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G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{a) Financial Statements {centinued)
Basis of Preparafion of Financial Sfalements (conlinued)

il New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not been
garly adopted by the Sub-Trust

Omn T June 2017, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB” or the "Board™) issued IFRIC Interpretation 23
- Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (the “Interpretation™). The Interpretation clarfies application of recognition
and measurement requirements in 1AS 12 Incorme Taxes when there is uncerainty over income tax treatments, The
Interpretation is effective for annual reporting peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs
are available. Based an the Sub-Trust's assesarment, this new standard is not expectad 1o have a signdicant impact on
the financial staterments of the fund or pedormance.

There are no ather standards, nterpretations or amendments 19 exsting standarnds that are not yet effectore that would
e expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Trust.

] Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date bass Realzed gains and losses ane basad on
the First In First Out ("FIFO™) method, Dvidend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and interest income and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment. Cverdratt expenses which ane
accrued as incurred, if any, are included in interest expense. Interest income incledes accretion of market discount,
original issue discounts and amodization of premiums and is recorded into income over the life of the underlying
investrment. Interest income and dividend income are recognized and presented on a gross basis before withholding
tax, if any, in the Staternents of Comgrehensive Income. Reimbursement of expenses is represented in the Staterments
of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Crperating and organizational expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Sub-Trust will also bear its offering and organzational expenses and the intial and ongoing expenses incurred
im connection with the offer and sale of Units, including printing costs, marketing costs, legal fees, expenses incurred
im connection with the review of subscription agreements and related documentation and other expenses of the Sub-
Trust, the Manager, the Trustes, the Investment Manager, the Global Distributor and the Administrator. The offering
and organzatonal expenses of the Sub-Trust, if any, are disclosed in the Statements of Comgrehensive Income for the
years anded 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2018, respactively.

A structured entity is an entily that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the donsnant factor i
deciding who contrals the enfity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activibes ang directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following
features or attributes; (a) restricted activibes, (b) a narrow and well-defined objective, such as to provide investment
opportunites for investors by passing on nsks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
imvestors, () insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities without subordinated financial
support and (d) inancing in the form of multiphe contractually linked instruments to investors that create concentratons
of credit or other risks (tranches),

The Master Fund finances their cperations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's option and
entitles. the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Sub-Trust's net assats. The Sub-Trust holds redeemable
shares in its Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust's maximum expesure to loss from its interests in the Master Fund ks equal to the total fair value of its
imvestments in the Master Fund.

Once the Sub-Trust has disposed of its shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from
that Master Fund,

15
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
[1:1] Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses (continued)

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, the net asset value of the Master Fund was LUSD 58,600,147 and
USD 65519671, respectively

) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
i Ciassification

The Sub-Trust classihes its investments based on both the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash fiow charactesistics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Sub-Trust is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that infarmation to assess the assets' performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
to irrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
flows of the Sub-Trust's debt securties are solely principal and intengst, however, these secunties are nedher helkd
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for coecting contractual cash flows and for sale.
The colection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Sub-Trust's busness model's objective.
Conseaquentty, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

[ Recogriban and Devecogmilion

The Sub-Trust recognizes financial assets and financial liabilties on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial Eabilties are recognized using trade
date accounting. From trade date, any gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabdities are recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the mvestments have expired or the Sub-
Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

13 Fair Yalue Measurement Principles

IFRS 8, published = July 2014, has replaced previcus guidance in |AS 39 and includes revised guidance on the
classiication and measuremant of financial instruments, EMective for reparting penads beginning on o after 1 January
2018 it carnies forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments. from 1AS 38,

Under IFRS 9, dassification and measurement of dabt assets will be dreven by the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash fiow characteristcs of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measured
at amortized cost if the objectve of the business model i to hold the financials asse! for the collection of the contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash fiows under the instrument solely represents payments of principal and interest
{"SPPI)

A bt instrument s measured at fair valee through comprehensve income if the objectve of the business model s
to held the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flews fram SPPI and to sell. All other debt instrurments must
be recognized at fair value through profit or loss. An entity may however, at initial recognition, imevecably designate
a fnancial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement of recognition inconsistency.

Derivative and equity instruments are measured al fair value through profit or loss unless, for equity instruments not
held for trading, an irrevecable option B taken to measure at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Under IFRS 2 the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio continues to be inftially recorded at their transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains and lossas ansing from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets or financial I=bilites at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they anse

Financial assets classified as recenables are carnied at amortzed cost, f any, Financial Babities, other than thass
at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost Financial liabilities arising from redeemable Units
ssued by the Sulb-Trust are camed at the redemplion amount representing the Unitholders’ nght to a residual amaunt
of the Sub-Trust's Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeamable Participating Units ("Net Assets”).
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
3 Fair Value Measurement Principles (confinued)

As a resull, the adoption of IFRS 9 has nat had any material impact on the Sub-Trust's financial statements.
The tair value of all gecurties and defvatives i determined accending to the lollowing pobcies

(it} Debl Secunities

Dbt securities, comprising corporate debt and government debt, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied quotations
of by using a third party pricing service. When a debt securty has been identfied as being in default, the interest acerual
on the defaulted sacurity may be stopped and, upon confirmation from relevant parties, the amount receivable may be
written off.

{2} Exchange Listed Assefs and Liabities

The fair value of exchange traded financial investments, comprising common stock and shor-term investments. is
based upon quoted market prices at the year end date without any deduction for estimated future transaction costs,

(i3 Meney Markel tnveslments

Money market investrments are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair valee,

) Shares in Coltechve Invesimen! Schemes

The fair value of investments in open-ended investrment funds, including collective investment schemes, is based
upon the official published Net Assat Value ("NAV") per share as suppbed by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation policy of applicable funds as outlined in the respective Offering Memorandum.

{ii5)  Derivatives

A desivatve i an instrument whoss fair value is derved from an underlying instrument, ndex reference rate of a
combination of these factors. Derfvative instruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred to
as over the counter "OTCY) derivatives ar they may be listed and traded on an exchange. Derivative contracts may
imwoke future commitments to purchase or sell financial mstruments or commadities at specified terms on a specified
date, or to exchange inferest payment streams or currencies based on a notional or contractual amount

Derivative contracts are stated at fair value and recognized as financial assets and financial liabilities on the Statements
of Financial Position. Gains and losses resulting from the change in the fair value are reflected on the Staterments of
Comprehensvé Incame 38 a companent of change in wifealized gainfiless). Realized gaing of losses ang recorded on
termination or from periedic cash flow payments.

(iFa)  Forward Foveign Currency Contracls

I a ferward foreign currency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to receive of deliver a fixed quantity of ane currency for
another, at a pre-determined price at a future date. Purchasas and sales of forward foreign currency contracts having
the sarme notional value, settiement date, counterparty and right 1o settie net are generaly offset (which result in a net
foreign currency position of zero with the counterparty) and any realized gains or losses are recognized on trade date.

Forward foreign currency contracts ane valued at mid by third party pricing service providers.

{ui) All Bacurifies and Darfvalives

If & quoted maket price & not available from a third party pricing senvice or a dealer, of a guotation B belisved
to be matenally mnaccurate, the far value of the investment & delermened by using valuabon techniques. Valuaton
techniques include the use of recent market fransactions, reference o the current fair value of ancther investment that
is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other techmigues that provides a reliable estimate of
prices obtained in actual market transactons

17

182/315



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
w Fair Value Measurement Principles (confinued)

(i) Al Securthes and Derfvailives (continued)

Such securities and derivatives shall be valued at their probable realization value as determined by a Valuer. The
‘faluer during the years ended 30 Septernber 2018 and 30 September 2018 was Gokdman Sachs & Co, LLC and the
valuation function was pedormed by Goldman Sachs Consumer and Investment Management Division Controflers
{SIMD Controllers),

The imvestments have been valued in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumpbons are based on the best available
imformation, actual results could be matenally different from these estimates.

There were no secunties where the Values was used 1o determine fair value duning the years ended 30 September 2019
and 30 September 2018

v Transfers bahween levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hwerarchy, if any. are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period

{d) Cash and Cash Bquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (short term, highly Bguid investrments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an msgnificant nsk of changes m value), including time deposits and centificates of deposa,
are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Centificates of depost and time deposts ane reclassfied from imancial assets at fair value through profit or [08s (e cash
and cash eguivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
an megnificant risk of changes in value.

&) Due fromito Brokers

Due fromfto brokers conssts primarily of cash collateral and margin amounts receiable fremipayable to the Sub-
Trust's clearing brokers and various counterparties. Collateral amounts due fromito broker balances are valued at cost
The amounts recerable from and payable to brokers represents cash setled in the Sub-Tust's broker accounts. Thesa
balances are related to cash held as collateral or margin on swaps and futures with clearing counterparties, fulures
margin cash recewable/payable to the Sub-Trust's futures clearing merchants, and cenfrally cleared swaps margin
cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's centrally cleared swaps clearing merchants.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amonzed cost, The Sub-Trust's
due from brokers balances are subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 8. Mo balances are considered
imgaired and no amounts have been wiitten off in the period.

Coflateral amounts and margin amaounts included in Due fromAo brokers are disclosed in the Statements of Financial
Pasition as at 30 September 2019 and 30 Septernber 2018, respectively.

{f) Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foresgn currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and labikties of the Sub-Trust denominated in fareign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the fereign eurrency exchange rate in effect at the year end date,
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{f) Fereign Currency Translation (continued)

Foreign cumency exchange differences arsing on translation and realized gains and losses on disposals or setferments
of agsets and liabahibes are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, Foreign currenty exchange gaing
of losses relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss and all ather foreign currency exchange gains or
loases relating to monetary items, incleding cash, are reflected in the net realized gain/loss) on investments or net
change in unrealzed gainf{loss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

ta) Redeemable Units

All receemable participating Units issved by the Sub-Trust provides the Unithoklers with the right to redeem for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unithoider's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets on the redemption date. In accordance
with 1AS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation”, such Units have been classified as a financial liabilsty at the value of
the redemption amount in the Statements of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually cbliged to redeerm Units
in acoordance with the Offering Memarandum

{h) Distributions Payable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Distnbutions/Dividends payable on the redeemable participating Units are recognized in the Staterments of
Comgrehensive Income as Fnance Casts.

a, Financial Assets and Financial Liabllities at Fair Value through Frofit or Loss

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the amendment to IFRS 12 “Fair Value Measurement” are described
bl

Level 1 = Unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets that ane accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or kabilties;

Lewvel 2 - Quoted prces in markets that are not active of inancial instruments for which signdicant mputs are abservable
{including but not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilty and credit
spreads), ather directly or indirectly. This may include the Valuer's assumptions in determining fair value measurement;

Level 3 - Prices or valuations that require significant uncbservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumpbions in
determining fair valuwe measuremant).

The bevel in the fair value heerarchy within which the fair value measurement & categonzed in s entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in #s entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair
value measurement uses oheervable inputs that require significant adjustrmant based on unobsarvable inputs, that
mieasurement i a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the ssgndicance of a parteular mput 1o the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 30 September 20189 and 30 September 2018, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss contain
irvestrments in underlying funds that have been fair valued in accordance with the policies set out above, The shares
of the underlying funds are not publicly traded; redemptions can only be made by the investor funds on the redemption
dates and are subject 1o the required notice periods specified in the Offering Memorandurm, As a result, the carrying
value of the underlying funds may not be indicative of the value uitimately realized on redemption.

The tair value of the investments in the underlying funds & pamarily based on the latest available redemplion price as
reported by the administrator of the underlying funds. The investor funds may make adjustments to the value based on
conselerations such as; liquedity of the investor funds' hedding in the underlying funds of their underlying investments,
the value date of the NAV provided and any restrictions on redemptions.
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G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

The following tables show financial assets and financial liabdties recognized at fair value, analyzed between the three

levels descnbed previoushy

Finamcial Assels measurad al Tair value

H-Sep-2019
Fair value measurerment at 30-Sep-2015%
Lewvel 1 USD Leniel 2 USD Lzl 3 LISD Total USD
Financial assels ol fair valee through profit o loss
Inwestrent Funds 55,428 487 — — 55 420 487
Foraaind Farsign Cumancy Conlracls — 17 459 — 17,458
Tolal 55,428 487 17 458 — 59,445 546

Financial Liabilities measured at fair value
M-Sep-2019

Fair value measurerment at 30-Sep-2015

Financial liabilties at far value through proft or loss
Foraard Foreign Cumency Conlracts —

—bovel 1 USD | LevelUSD  _ LevelJUSD  __ ToalUSD

Total —

32 475 o 632 475
B3ZATS — 832,475

Financial Assets measured at falr value
HW-Sep-2018

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value measurement at 30-Sep-2018
—Level 1 USD  _ Level JUSD

—bevel SUSD _ Totsl USD

Irvsestrment Funds &5.550,755 - - 65,550,755

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts - 11,341 — 11,341

Tadlal 5,550,755 11,311 — 65,562 066
Financial Liabilitles measured at falr value
30-Segp-2018

Fair value measurement at 30-Sep-2018
_ Lewel 1 USD Level 2 USD Lewvel 3 USD Total LSO

Financial liabilties at Tar value through profi of loss

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts = 589,994 = 589,994

Tolal —_ 559,954 —_ 559,954

During the years ended 30 Septerrber 2019 and 30 September 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilites which were recorded at fair value,

There were no securities leveled at Level 3 at 30 Seplember 2018 and 30 September 2018.

Financial Assets and Financial Liakilities not carried at falr value but for which fair value s disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft are classified as Level 1, All other assets and labikties not measured at
fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Leveld 2. Refer to the Staternents of Financial Position for
a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Note 3{c) for a description of the valuation techniques.

The puttable value of redeemable participating Units classified as a financial liability is calculated based on the net
difference betessen iofal assels and all ather labilities of a Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum, These Units are not traded on an active market. A dermand feature s attached to these Units, as they
are redeemable at the holders' option and can be put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proportionate Units of the Sub-Trust's WAV attributable to the Units class. The fair value is based on the amount payable
on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. The impact of discounting
in this instance is not material, As such, Level 2 is deemed 1o be the mest appropriate categorization for net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating Units.
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G5 CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Derivalives

In arder to better define its contractual rights and to secure nights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate its counterparty
nigk, the Sub-Trust may enter into an International Swaps and Dervatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement (T1SDA
Master Agreement”) or similar agreements with its derivative contract counterparties. An 1SDA Master Agreement
i5 a bilateral agreement between the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that geverns OTC dervatives, including foreign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the
event of a default andfor termination évent. The provisions of the 1IZ0A Master Agreement typacally permit a single
net payment in the event of a default (close-out netting) or similar event, including the bankruptey or insolency of the
counterparty.

Collateral and margin requeements differ between exchange traded derivatives and OTC derivatives. Margin
requinements are estabkshed by the broker o cleaning house for exchange-fraded and centrally cleared derivatives
{financial futures contracts, options and centrally cleared swaps) pursuant to the governing agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain crcumstances. Collateral terms are
coniract-specific for OTC derivatives (foreign currency exchange contracts, options and certain swaps). For derivatives
traded under an 1ISDA Master Agreement, the collateral requirements ane typically calculated by neting the mark-fo-
market amount for each transaction under such agreement and companng that amount to the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
coltateral to the eounterparty = the form of inilal mangin, the terms of which would be oullingd in the confirmation af
the OTC transacton,

For financial repanmg purpases, cash collateral that has been pledged to cover oblgations of the Sub-Trust and cash
coliateral recerved from the counterparty, if any, is reported separately on the Statements of Financial Position as due
fromfdue to broker. Mon-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust, if any, s noted in the Schedules of Investments.
Generlly, the amount of collateral due from or to a counterparty must exceed a minimum transfer amount threshold
belare a transher is required to be made. To the extent amoents due 1o the Sub-Trust from its counterpanies are not fully
coliateralized, contractually or ctherwise, the Sub-Trust bears the risk of loss from counterparty nonperformance. The
Sub-Trust attermnpts o mitigate counterparty risk by anly entering into agreements with counterparties that & believes to
be of good standing and by monitoning the fnancial stability of those counterparties,

Additionally, the netting of assels and liabilites and the offsetting of collateral pledged or recenved are based on
confractual neting/set-off provisions in the ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreements. However, in the event of a
default or insalvency of a counterparty, a court could determane that such rights are not enforceable due to restrictions
of prohibstions against the right of satoff that may be imposed due 1o a particular jursdiction’'s bankruptey of insahvency
lawvs.

The follewang tables set forth the Sub-Trust's net exposure for demvative instruments that are subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar agreements at the years ended 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018

0-Sep-2019
Duwivative Ascets™ Darivative Lisblies™
Mot Derivaties  Collatersl
Aty it gl Mt
Countewparty Foreards’ Forsards’ (Lishtir) Fludged™ Ammgunt™
Chitank MA 14T [EXTERTT) [EIERLH 110600 315N
JPilorgan Chase £ Co B.0xs (B0 BSay {T2a24) . (710
Berril Lymch . (I35, 166 {2¥5.966) . 235, VEE)
Rieryal Bask of Canada - iy [RAINT - ERLLH]
_Feeneal B of Seotiand FLE BT - B.247 - 24T
“Tatal AT A8 (832 ATS) 1615,016) 000 (M08

* Gross amaunts ovalabbhe for ofsel bul not netied in the Stalements of Finencial Postions.
“ Hiet amoued represants e net amoonl do (1) fiem counlepety in ihe eveed of & Gelea based on ihe conrectusl Sel-of rghts under ke agresment. Fal
areoun] sxchudes &y coe-colalenaized amounts

* The fianward Tetsign curmency coninects tables in the Scrmdubes of Invisiments ane p d bisted on net by gl dal with #assh counlaipanty
and mury not be back [0 gross axsels and BabSties.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {continued)

Derivatives fcontinued)

30-Sop-2018
Dwivative Azeats™ Crariwative Lisbisties™
Het Derivative  Collateral
Assots [Received) Hist
_Counteparty Farwards Forsardy (Lishilties)  Pledged™  Ameunt™
Ausieniln & Hew Tesland 105 = 1,138 . 103
Baniking Geoug Lid
Ctibank MA 1601 44,3023 {13301 -1
Deadzche Bank A0 023 v 2033 - 023
Baerrill Lynch 1.523 [Fa: L v {254,905 - [Fa Wb
Rogal Bk of Scotland FLO 5.628 (280 054) {274.436) < ETAANE
Talal 1,31 [3a8 ¥4} [ELCELET] x {578,683

~iEross amoums avadab ke for ofsel Dl nof nedied in the Stalements of Finencial Posiions.
* Net amount represents the net amount due (B2) frem counlepanty in the event of & delsal based on the contrechusl set-0f rights under e agresment. Nel
amoun sxchutes ey oo collaberakzed ameunts

* This fafwand Tedsln o ey | Eables inthe 5 & &l | i ar# p d bated on nel LR anln wath sl conlapany
and may ol Be BRck [ grols atsle and Ribatis
Taxation

There are at present no corporation, income, capital gains, profits or other taxes in the Cayman Islands which would
apply to the profits in respect of the Sub-Trust Mor are there gift, estate or inheritance taves in the Cayman Islands.
The Trustee has applied for and has receved from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman Islands an undertaking in
accordance with Secton 81 of the Trusts Law (as amended) that for a penod of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trust no law which 5 thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any taxes or duty to be levied
on income of on capital assets, gans or apprecmation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inhartance tax shall
apply to the propedty comprised in of any income ansing under the Sub-Trust of o the Trustes or Unitholders theseal
in respect of any such property or income, provided that a Unitholder who is at any time ressdent or domiciled in the
Cayman Iskands {other than any object of a charitable trust or power or an exemgpted or ordinary non-resident comgany
incorporated in the Cayman Islands) shall be liabke in and in respect of such time to all and any tax and duty as if
such undertaking had never been given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as
exempting any such person resident or dormeciled in the Islands from any law impesing any tax or duty refermed to in
the Trusts Law

The Sub-Trust invests in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands.
Mary of these foreign countrnies have tax laws which indicate that capital gaing taxes may be applicable to noa residents,
such as the Sub-Trust. Typically, these capital gains taxes are reqguired to be determined on a seff assessment basis
and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withholding™ basis

In accordance with |AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Sub-Trust's capifal gains sourced from
such fareign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowiedge of all the facts and circumstances.

The tax lmbility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authordies using the tax
laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There 8 sometimes
uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whather or not a tax kabilty wil ulbmately be paid by the Sub-Trust Therefore when measuning any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the tima which could influence
the likelthood of payment, including any farmal or informal practices of the relevant tax authoribies,

For the years ended 30 Septernber 2019 and 30 September 201 8, the Sub-Trust has measured uncertain tax liabilites
and related interest and penalties with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. While this represents management
best estimate there remains a sk that foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any priar waming, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2019

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties
{a) Investment Management and Advisors Fee

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Investment Manager receves, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a guartery fee accruing daily and calculated and paid on a quarterly basis in armears egual to 0.60% of the Sub-
Trust's average MAV, determined as of the last business day of the applicable quarter end, adjpested to reflect any
subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the applieable calendar guaner In additon, subject to the consent
of the Investment Manager, the Trustee reserves the nght to waive fees, or impase greater of lesser fees on, or to
retate all or a portion of any of the investment management fees to any Unitholder, inciuding affiliates of the Investment
Manager, as may be agreed to by the Investment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Unitholder. The imvestment
management fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensie Income for the years ended 30 September 2018
and 30 September 2018, respectively

The Sub-Trust mwvests in underying funds which may also pay investment management feas to the investment advisors
who are related parbes to G5AM and GS Singapore. The Sub-Trust indirectly bears the expenses pasd by the underlying
funds. The table below sets forth the fee rate for the underlying funds and is as follows:

Annual Fao

Undirlying Funeds Rati %
Goldman Sachs Funds PLC - USS Liguld Reserves Fund, Class X nil
Goldman Sachs Funds SICAY - Goldman Sachs CoCos & Capital Securities Portfolio - Class 1D nil

{b) Manager Fee

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking {Luxembourg) S.A, ("MIBL" or the "Manager”) serves as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust

MIBL has been authorized asa commercial bank and is regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg by the Commission
de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). It was incorporated in Luxemiourg as a socébé ananyme on 11 Apnl
1874 as a magority—owned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd

The Manager receives, from the assats of the Sub-Trust, a fee accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis m armears
equal to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's average MAY. The manager fees for the years ended 30 September 2019 and 30
September 2018 are disclosad in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income, respectively.

(5] Administration and Transfer Agent Fee

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (BBH") is the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agent, The Admenistrator and
Transfer Agent perform cerain day-to-day administrative tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trust, including maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's bocks and recedds, calculabion of the NAY and payments of the Sub-Trusl's expenses

BBH Is paid solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including asset-based, safekeeping, ransaction, servicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager. Additionally, at month end, the
securities for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the transaction type and a fee rate s applied The Sub-Trust will
pay such fees monthly in amears.

Annual adrmenstration and transfer agent charges on the walue of month end avirage net assets waill be assessed at the
Sub-Trust level, based on the following schedule;

Assels up lo USD 500 million 4.0 bps
Assets betwesn USD 500 milkon — USD 1 bilkon 30bps
Azsels above UED 1 billicn 2.5bps

The administration and transfer agent fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, respectively
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For the Year Ended 30 September 2012

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
{d} Distributicn Fee

The Globkal Distnbutor and the Japanese Distnbutor recese a fee, accnang daily and paid on a quarterly basis in amears,
equal to 0.80% of the Sub-Trust's average NAY, adjusted to reflect any subscriptions, redemptions or distributions
during the applicable calendar quarter.

The distribution fees are disciosed in the Statements of Comprehangive Income far the vears ended 30 Septembaer
2018 and 20 September 2018, respectively.

(e} Trustes Fee

Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Campany (Cayman) Limited acts as the Trestee for the Sub-Trust The Triustes
responsible for the overall supervision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust The
Sub-Trust will pay such fees, monthly in arrears, o the Trustee egual to 0.01% of the average NAY.

The trustes fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensaee Incorme for the years ended 30 September 2019
and 30 September 2018, respectivealy

if Custodian Fee

The Trustes has delegated the responsibility for custody of the Sub-Trust's assets to BBH. The custedian carnes out the
usual dubies regarding custody, cash and securities deposits, without any restriction. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securties on a monthly bass. At month end, the securities held by the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the
country of arigin. The USD equivalant fair value is denved for each security and a fee rate is applied based on country
of origen

The custedian fees are disclosed in the Staternents of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2018
and 30 September 2018, respectively

{a) Agent Company Fee

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Lid. acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent
Company recaives a fee, accruing daily and paid quarterly in arrears, equal to 0003% of the Sub-Trust's NAV.

The agent company fees are disclosed m the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2019 and 30 September 2018, respectively,

8 Redeemable Participating Units
Classes Issue Price Minimum Initial Subscription
EUR EUR 10 EUR 100
Py JPY 10,000 JPY 10,000
uED usg 10 Us0 100

Linis will be cffersd for sale on each Bustingss day at the NAY per Unit of the applicable class.

Units are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder upon notice given in accordance with the terms of the Cffering
Memorandum, nits will b2 redesmed at the NAY per Uinit of the applicakle Class prevailing as of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurted in connection with sech redemplion

Units of the Master Fund are also redesmable atthe cption of the Unithalder on demand upon nolice given in accordancs
with the tesms of the Offering Memarandum

Asoof 30 Septermber 2019 and 30 September 20713, the Sub-Trust had anly one Unitholded, which i4 a related pay 1o
the Manager.
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10.

Redeamable Farticipating Units (continued)

The following summearnizes the activity in the Sub-Trust's Units

Numbser of Units

Class EUR Clazz EUR Clazs JPY Clags JPY Clags USD Clags USD

{MDHs1) (SDist) (M Dilst) [EDist) {MDist) {5Dist)

Balance 30 September 207 06,455 420,797 39,002 96, &34 ERECNTE 1,077,549
Subseriptions of redesmable

panicipatahg Units 230,979 84,718 41,050 5372 ABS5,TTY 54009
Redemplions of redeemable

paricipating Unils (168.656) (142.104) (84.543) 68T (1.190.552) (35T

Balance 30 Septomber 2018 BT, 758 573411 195 547 B4, T35 2,714,932 147,588
Subscriptions of redeemable

paricipating Unils 2,705 21,550 2221 2.278 344,950 76090
Redemplions of redeemabie

panticipatang Units [(195.357) (87 347} {34 487} | 25.904) (S47.547) {160 588)

Balance 30 September 2019 485,208 457,654 183,261 41,104 2,512,325 663,080

HAY per Unit

The consideration received or paid for redeemable participating Units issued of re-purchased respectively i basad on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redeermable participating Units at the date of the transacton,

The MAV and NAY per Unit for each Unit class outstanding for the Sub-Trust are as follows:

30-Sep-H19 J0-Sep-20M8

Unit Class et Assel Valus HAY Per Unit Nel Assel Value NAY Par Uinit

Class EUR {MDust) usD 4,500,885 ELR B51 UED 6,830,198 EUR 842
Class EUR {SDist) usp 5574 408 EUR A7 ush 6435451 EUR 10.59
Clags JPY (MDisl) usD 14,546,692 JPY 8,579 uUsD 14,577 918 JPY B 4548
Class JPY (EDiel) usED 4,279,402 JPY 11,250 UsD 8,063 407 JPY 10,639
Class S0 {MDest) usp 22694454 uso 503 USD 23860262 USD 883
Class \ISD {SDHst) USD 8 090,576 uso 12.20  UsD 5 381 089 uso 1121

Distributions

Distnbubons are made at the election of the Investment Manager and the amounts declared and paid dunng the years
ended 30 Septembber 2019 and 30 September 2018 are disciosad in the Staterments of Comprehensive Incame when
net assats attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units are classified as a financial kabil#ty. Distributions
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trusts NAV per Unit without any correspondmg change in the number of Units per
Unitholders, This results in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributions
paid during & yvear which are In excess of the Sub-Trust's accumulated net income/(loss) from operations results in a
portion of the distributions being a return of capital

The following table indicates the antcipated distribution declaration date for each frequency of distribution, unless
oiherwise determined by the Manager, in consultation with the Investment Manager:

Freguscy of Distiibutiamn Diatributian Deel aratlon Dala

MOHst Monthly 10th of each monlh
SDist Semi-Annual  101h of February and August each yesr
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For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activities ex pose it to vanous types of risks that are associated with the financial investments
and markets in which the underlying Master Fund invests These may be both dervative and non-derivative financial
imvestmeants. The Sub-Trust's investment portfolio is comprsed of underlying funds and derivative investments at the
pericd end. The Trustes has appointed the Investment Advisors 1o manage the nsks of the Sub-Trust The significant
types of financial risks which the Sub-Trust is exposed to are market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Cffering
Memorandum provides details of thess and other types of nisk some of which are additional to the information pravided
im these financial staterments,

Asset allocation is determined by the Sub-Trust's Investment Advisors who manage the allocation of assets to achieve
the invesirment objectve as detadied in Mote 2 Achievement of the investment objective involves taking risks. The
Investment Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management technigues when making
investment decissons, Dvergence from the benchmark andior the target asset allocation and the composition of the
portfolio is monitoned in accordance with the Sub-Trust's risk management policy.

The existence of multiple investrment vehicles investing in the same underlying fund, presants cemain unigue nisks to
imvestors. The Sub-Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the same underlying
fund. Far example, if another Unitholder of the underlying fund redeems same or all of its interests, the Sub-Trust,
may experiance higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower retums. Sirnilarly, the underlying fund
may become less diverse due 1o redemptions from its other Unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio sk, The
underlying fund may restrict its investment activiies or be preciuded from investing in certain instrurments due to
regulatony restrictions on certain of &s dirsct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse sffect on the
perforrmance of the underlying fund, and, in turn, the Sub-Trust.

The nisk management policies employed m relation to the Sub-Trust are detailed below:

(a) Market Risk

The patential for changes in the fairvabue of the Sub-Trust's imvestment portfolio is referred to as market risk. Commonly
usad categories of market risk include currency risk, interest rate sk and other price risk

. Currency resk may result from exposunes to changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatities of cunency
rates.

. |nterest rate risk may result from exposures. to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the varicus yield
curves, the volaliity of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

. Other price rick is the risk that the value of an westrment will fluctuate 25 a result of changes in market prices
other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk and may result from exposures to changes in
the prces and volatities of individual equiies, eguity baskets, equity indices, and commodities

The market risk strategy is driven by the Sub-Trust's investment risk and return objectives.

Market risk is managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisors determine an
appropriate risk target, commonly referred to as Tracking Eror, employing a sk budgeting Tramewark,

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs (“IMD MRA"} is responsible for independently moniioring, analyzing
and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Advisors. IMD MRA uses a number of risk metrics to monitor the
market risks including monitoring sensitivities, and Tracking Error.

Dietails of the Sub-Trust's investment portfclio at the reportng date are disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. All
individual coBective investment schemes and derivative imvestments are dsclosed separately.

(i) Currency Risk
Each currency class of the Sub-Trust will seek to hedge against each rebevant currency. This is referred to as Class
Hedging. Morecves, where a Unitholder invests in Unés of a Hedged Class that are hedged nio a class currency other

than the home currency of the Unitholder's own junisdiction, such Unitholder will be exposed to the significant risk that
the class currency will depreciale against such home currency,
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
{i) Currency Risk (continued)

Hedging with the relevant class currency is not necessarily complete and each cumency class may be subject to
currency exchange fluctuation of the curency in which the Units have been issued

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust is hedged to the currency of that class. Hedging gains and losses, with respect
to hediging activity undertaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a Currency Class, are aliccated salely to that respectve
curfency class

The Sub-Trust may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions dencmenated in cureéncies other than
thewr functional currency, Consequently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of their functional
currency relatve to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect an the value of that
portion of the Sub-Trust's assats of lAbiltes denominated in culfencies ather than ite functhanal currency. Plexse refer
to the Schedules of Investiments of the Sub-Trust which details investments in currencies other than thesr functional
CUrmency.

\When an investor invests into a Unit class which is in a different currency to the base cumency of the Sub-Trust in which
it irvests, the currency risk of the imvestor will be different to the currency nsk of the Sub-Trust

The Sub-Trust had no significant cumency risk exposure at 30 September 2049 and 30 September 2018,

The followeng table sets forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses that would be assocated with changes in
the currency markets. This sensitivity analysis i based on a change in the base currency of the Master Fund versus ail
other currencies. Each line shows the contribution of each currency to the resulting total fund Met Income, that also has
an mpact on the NAY per Unitin each relevant currency. The currency risk senstivity analysis includes monetary and
nan-monetary ibems while also considenng the hedging effect resulting from the use of denvatnies.

The follswang analysis far the Sub-Trust & presented based on the indirect exposure to the investments of the Master
Fund,

Impact on MAV for 10% Cumency Appreciatlon/Depreciation
Bage currency Is USD

H-Sap-2019 30-Sep-2N19 I0-Sep-7ME M-Sop-20E
Curreney Apprecialion D e it fon Appraciation Deprocistion
EUR [ 0.0 10.1%) 0.1%
Ohier® 10.0%) 0.0% 10.0%:) 0.0%
Impact on Mei Asseis [y 0.0% {BA%} 0.1%
* The Sub- Trol P mmalenisl e 1o Eeel e d cuenency. Tha iy Bew oS3 than 0055 of MAY. The corency risk Bable i3 prasenisd based on B
Ivdnct ep 12 the i ofithe rhying funds

The above analysis dlustrates the impact associated wath changes in the curmency market that are reasonably possible
ower a ane year period, and these do not include siress scenarios when market moves and changes in correlations and
fruidity may result in larger overall gains or losses.

The Sub-Trust had the foliowing currency concentrations, including hedging, greater than «/-5% of NAY as at 30
September 2015 and 20 September 2018,

Curmency Currency
concantration concentration
Curraney 0-Sep 2019 30-Sep-2018
EUR 16. 545 19.53%
JPY 51.85% 31.25%

For the Master Fund, there wese no cumency concentratons, including hedging, greater than 5% of MAV
at 30 September 2019 and 30 Septernber 2018
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
(i} Interast Rate Risk

The Sub-Trust may mwest in fied income securities and corporate debt through its indirect exposure to the nvestments
of the Master Fund, Any change to the relevant interest rates for paricular securties may result in the Investment
Agdvisors being unable to secure similar returns on the expiry of the contracts or the sale of securities. In addition,
changes to prevailing interest rales or changes in ex pectations of future rates may resull m an increase of decréase n
the value of the securities held In genaral, if interest rates rise, the value of the fed income securities will decline. A
decling in interest rates will in general have the opposite effect

The Sub-Trest may invest in instruments in desired currencies at fixed, floating and zero rates of interest throwgh its
indirect exposure to the nvestment of the Master Fund.

The follawang table sets forth the interest rate exposures for vanous curencss in the Sub-Trust based on indirect
exposure to the investment of the Master Fund and the impact that is associated with changes in the interest rates.
This sensativity analysis is based on a change in the interest rates applicable to one currency while holding all other
interest rates constant, except for the Total Portfolio, which assumes all interest rates move simultaneously by the same
number of basis points. A parallel shift of 75bps means that all interest rates along a curve will change by efther a V5bps
increase or decrease (Le. a 0.75% increase or decrease).

A postivelnegative paraliel shi#t for interest rales represents a +/-75bps paraiiel shift in the yield curve for developed
interest rates and a +/-125bps shift for emerging markets interest rates. Developed markets are the group of the
Eurczone countnes, Austraha, Canada, Switzedand, Denmark, the United Kingdom, Japan, Noreay, New Zealand,
Sweden and the Uniled Sates of America

Impact an MAY for paralbel shift

H-Sop-201 9 I0-Sep-2013 30-Sep-2018 H-Sop-iE
Curreney Posillve Hegative Positive Megative
EUR (0.8%) 0.8% 10.8%) 0.8%
GEP (0L 3%:) 0.3% 10.3%) 0.2%
uso (2.0%) 2.0% £2.2%) 2.2%
Total Portiolio {3.1%) 3% 13.3%) 3.3%

The above analyss illustrates the impact associated with changes in the interest rate market that are reasanably
possible and exclude changes in the slope of both interest and credit curves. These scenarios also do not include stress
scenarios when market moves and changes in comelations and liquidity may result in larger overall gains or losses.
In addron, given the maturity profile of the invesiments as disclosed in the Schedules of Investments, changes in the
credit curve could have a significant impact on the NAY of the Sub-Trust
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For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Market Risk [continued)
(i) Interest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and labilities of the Sub-Trust is as fallows:

Al 30-Sep-2019
Mo Irftarast
Up to1 year 1- Sysars  OQwer § yoars Baaring Total

Assels
Cash and cash aguivalents Ga0,934 - - 1.918 802 852
Financial assets held for trading andfor

hedging - - - 59,445 948 59,445,545
Cther assels = - = I G4z 111642
Total Azgels S00,934 = - 53,759 508 0,660,440
Liabilities
Financial labilties held for trading andfor

hedgng - = = G2 4TS 632475
Payable for Envestments purchased - - - 11 11
Oiher linbilties - - = 341, 428 341,429
Tatal Liabliities excluding net assets

aliributable to Unitholders — — — 74,05 A74.015
Al J-Sep-2018

M Inlirest
Up to1 year 1- Sysars  Ower 5 yoars Baaring Total

Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1,003,521 - - 3965 1,007 488
Financial assets held for trading andfor

hedgng - - - 65,962,066 65, 962 066
Receivable for nvestments sold - - - 257 476 257 ATE
Olher arsgels - - - 515 515
Total Assets 1,003,521 - - 66,224,022 67,227,543
Liabllitles
Financial Babilties held for rading andfor

Predgag - - - 589, 994 550,994
Oiher liabilties - - = 5853228 585,726
Total Liabilities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders - - - 1,175,220 1,175,520
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
(i) Interest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Master Fund is as follows:

Al 30-Sep-2019
Mon Interast
Up to 1 year 1- Syears  Owver S years Baaring Total

ASSels
Financial assets held for rading andior

hedging 2585751 28924174 27.164 354 GET 062 57,351,341
Total Assats 2,595,758 I6924,1T4 27,164,354 GET 067 57,351,441
Liabilities
Financial abilties held for rading and’

o hedging - - - 2 845 2548
Total Liabilities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders - - - 2,648 2648
Al 30-Sop-2018

Non Interast
Up o 1 year 1- Syears  Owver S years Baaring Tatal

Assels
Financial assets held for rading andior

hedging 5731872 23711581 32084 588 3041511 B4, 569,380
Tatal Assats 5,TM 672 TTISEH 32,084,586 3,041,511 64,568,360
Liabilities
Financial abilties held for rading and’

o hedging - - - 181,127 181,127
Tatal Liabliities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders - — — 181,427 181,127

{iiiy  Other Price Risk

Cther price risk is the risk that the value of a financial investrent will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
othwer than those ansing from currency nsk of mterest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an individual
imvastrnent, #s issuer or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market

As the Sub-Trust's financial investments are carried at fair valse with fair value changes recognized in the Staternents

of Comprehensie Income, all changes in market condibons will directly afect net assets attnibutable to Holdess of
Redesmable FParticipating Units.

The Sub-Trust's imvestments in collective nvestment schermesimutual funds are based upon the NAV as supplied
by the underlying funds, in accordance with the waluation policy of the applicable fund as outlined in its COffering
Memorandum. While it is expected that the assets of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an indepandent third
party administrator or other saqvice provider, there may be circumstances in which cartain securties or ather asgsets af
a mutual fund may nat have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutual fund may be required to value such securities or instruments.

The Sub-Trust is not exposed to any matenal other price risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
[iv} Limitatiens of Sensitivity Analysis

Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include:

. the analysis is based on histoncal data and cannal take accownt of the fact that future market price movemants,
correlations bebween markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no relation to historical patterns;

. the analysis is a relatve estimate of sk rather than a precse and accurate number;

. the analysis represents a hypothetical cutcome and is not intended to be predictive; and

* future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past

(by Ligquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset Among other things liquidity could be impaired by
an inabilty to access secured andlor unsecured sources of linancing, an inabifity to sell assets or unforeseen outflows
of cash or collateral or violations of counterparty or prime broker terms or covenants. This situation may arise due
to circumstances outside of the Sub.Trust's control, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem
affecting the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability to sell assets may be impaired if other market participants are
seaking 1o sell similar a55ets al the same tirme.

The Sub-Trust's financial assets and financial liabilities include investrments in derivalive confracts traded over the
counter, which are net traded in an arganized public market and which may be illiquid and in investments which may
represent a significant percentage of issue size. As a result, the Sub-Trust may not be able to liquidate quickly scme
of thess investments at an amount closs to fair value in order 1o meet requirements, of to respond to specific events
such as detenoration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer, The forced liquidation of investrnent positions may
cause financial losses.

The Sub-Trust's investrments include coliective investment schemes, which may impose greater restrichons on
redemptions than those imposed by the Sub-Trust This may include offerings less frequent redemption dates than are
offered by the Sub-Trust 1o its Unitholders,

The Sub-Trust provides for the subscription and redemption of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
associated with Unitholder redemptions in accordance with the terms in the Offering Memorandum. The Sub-Trest's
Offering Memaorandum provides for the daily subscription and redemption of Units.

The Sub-Trust is managed to include liquid investments sufficient 1o meet normal lquidity needs athough substantial
redemplions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to lquidate its imvestments mare rapidly than
otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemad and the valuation of the Units that remain cutstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assals if more liqued assets have been sold 1o meet redemptions.

The Trustes may mit o suspend redemptions in certain crcumstances, includng, but not Iimited to, when the
determination of NAV has been suspended; where the disposal of part or all of the Sub-Trust's assels to meet
such redemplion requests would, in the reasonable opmion of the Trustes, be préjudicial to Unitholders, or under
extracrdinary circumstances beyond the control of the Trustee. With respect to any redemption, having consulted with
Irvestrment Manager, the Trustes rray resendg amounts from the redemption proceeds fof any expenses, labilites or
contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS.

As at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2018, all Eability amounts are due within three months.

As at 30 Septernber 2018, gross inflews and gross cutflows for forward foreign currency contracts were USD 31,521,650
and LISD 32,136 688, respectivaly.

Asat 30 September 2018, gross inflows and gross outfiows for forward fareign currency contracts were USD 35 711,545
and LISD 36 200,228, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts are generally sefttled net.

k1|
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(b} Liquidity Risk [continued)

Financing arrangements include derwatve transactons.

Expiration of termination of available financing for leveraged positions, and the requirements to post collateral in respect
of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposures or changes in advance rates or ather terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's financing arrangements, can result in adverse effects 1o the Sub-Trust's access 1o guidity and ability 1o
maintain leveraged positions, and may cause the Sub-Trust to incur material losses. The Sub-Trust may bomow or
ulilze other forms of leverage (on a secured and unsecured basis) for any purpose including, increasing investment
capacity, and covering operating expenses of for the settlement of transactions, Howewver, there is no guarantes that
any such armangements for abtaining leverage will be available, or, f available, wil be available on terms and conditions
acceptabde to the Sub-Trust Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the
capital markets or result in 2 decision by kenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust.

The use of leverage alss increases nsk as it magnifies the affect of any volatilty in fair values on the Sub-Trust's net
assefs attributable to Holders of Redeemabde Participating Units.

Adecling in the market value of the Sub-Trust's assets may have particular adverse conSequences in instances whene
they have bormowed money on the market value of those assets. A decrease in the market value of those assets may
result in the lender (mcleding derivative counterparties) requinng the Sub-Trust to post adddional collateral or ctherwise
sell assets at a time when it may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so

ic) Cradit Risk

Cradit risk is the risk that one party to a financial mvestment will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to its dealings with counterparties
of issuers in the Sub-Trust. Before transacting, the Imvestment Advisors or their related parties evaluate both credit-
wworthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The credit risk
of approved countérparties or Bsuers i then monitoned on an ongoing basis, including penodic reviews of financial
staternents and interim financial reports as needed.

In order ta reduce exposure to credit losses, some overthe-counter derivative agreements entered into by the Sub-Trust
permit netting of transactions ansing under such agreements, excluding those with counterparties executing only spot
foreign exchange contracts. While such netting rights do not result in an offset of reported assets and labilities, they
do provide for the reduction of credit risk on favorable everthe-counter transactions with a single counterparty to the
extent of the value of unfavorable over-the-counter transactions with the same counterparty upon the occurrence of an
event of default or terméination event as all over-the-counter transactions with the counterparty under such agresmeant
are terminated and amounts owed from and amounts payable to the counterparty are settled on a net basis.

Dett securdies are subject to the sk of isguer's of 8 Quaraniors mabday to meet pncipal and interest payments on
its obligations and are subject to price volatility due to factors such as interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the
creditwenhiness of the issuer, and general market liguedity,
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

The Sub-Trust is subject io a number of resks relating to the nsolvency, adminestration, quidation or other formal
pratection from creditors (Insolvency”) of the Custodian or any sub-custodian [/ Trustee, These nsks mclude without
Emaation;

i The loss of all cash held with the Custedian or sub-custadian / Trustes which B nat baing treated as chient
money both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians / Trustee (“clent money™)

i The loss of all cash which the Custedian of sub-custodian / Trustee has failed to treat as clent money n
accordance with procedures (f any) agread with the Sub-Trust

i, The loss of some or all of any securities held on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so
identified both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians [ Trustee ("Trest Assets”) or client money
held by of with the Custodian or sub-custodian § Trustee.

. The loss of some o all assets due to the incarect operabion of accounts by the Custadian or sub-custodian /
Trustee or due to the process of dentifying and transferring the refevant Trust Assets andior chent money
including any deduction to meet the adminisirative costs of an inschency,

¥ Lesses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining contral ever the relevant
assets

An insohrency could cause severe distuption o the Sub-Trust's investment activity. In some circurnstances, this could
cause the Investment Manager to temporanly suspend the calculation of the MAY and dealing in Units.

Cash held with the Trustee may be poocled with the Trustee's cash and, in respect of that cash, the Sub-Trust may rank
as a general creditor of the Trustes in the event of the Trustee's insobvency. Non cash held with the Custodian are held
insegregated accounts and are not expectad to be pooled and therefore should not be available to other creditors of the
Trustee in the event of an insolvency. The Trustee may also appoint sub-custodians to hold certain assets on behalf of
the Sub-Trust. In the case of bankmuptey or insolvency of a sub-custodian, the Sub-Trust's rights weth respect to those
assets may be delayed, Emited or reduced

At 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, the following financial assels wene exposed to oedit sk nvestments
in debt investrnents, derrrative financial assets, cash and cash equavalents and other receivables. The carrying amounts
of financial assets best reflact the maximum counterparty credit risk exposure at the regoarting date

The maximum exposure to credit risk (excluding notional valves on forward foreign cumency contracts) as at the
reporting date can be analyzed as follows. Amounts in the table below are based on the market value

30-Sep-2018 I0-Sep-2018
Instrument Type® uso Uush
Cash and cash equivalents 802 852 1,007 486
Dividend recenable 1642 815
Dus from brokers:

Colleferal amounts 310,000 -
Forward foreign currency conbracts 17 459 11,311
Receivable for investiments sold . 257 ATE
Total 1,231,853 1,276,788

* Open anded imvesiment companias are nod inchaded in This Bable since (hey are nod exposed 1o drect ol risk.

The Sub-Trust hag the fallewing exposure to Bauer eredit rak

30-8ep-2012  30-Sop-2018
% %

Raking
Mot Rated 100,00 100.00
Tatal 100 00% 00, 00
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

The Master Fund has the follewing exposure to issuer credit nsk (as a percentage of the tolal market value of the

Master Fund):

Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&PMoody's/Fitch Investor Service.

Ralimg 2019 30 -Z1E
) 6491 TAT
BBE 48,56 4581
B8 348 0.4
B 1033 1.13
CoC 050 047
Mot Rated 212 528
Total 100, D% 100,004

The table above indicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterparties of isseers are gither
rated investrment grade in their cwn night or if not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree has such a rating
and the Credit Risk Management and Advisery department of the Investment Manager bekeves there is strong Implicit
support from the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer. The investment Advisors have a credit policy in place and
thie exposute 1o credit rsk i mantored an an ongaing basis

A credit default swap is an agreement that involves one party making a stream of payments o anather party in exchange
for the rght to recene protection on a reference secunty of obigation. As a $eller of protection, the Sub-Trust generally
receives 8 payment stream throughout the term of swap, provided that there is no credit event. In addition, if the Sub-
Trust sells protection through a credit default swap, the Sub-Trust could sufler a loss because the value of the reference
obligation may be less than the premium payments received. Upon the occurrence of a specific credit event, the Sulb-
Trust, as a seller of credit protection, may be reguired to take possession of the defaulted reference obgation and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap in a physical settled trade. The Sub-Trust may also
pay a net settlement amount in the form of cash or securtties squal to the notianal amount of the swap reduced by the
recovery valug of the reference abligation in a cash settled trade. Recovery values are al tmes established thiough
the credit event auction process in which market participants are ensured that a transparent prica has been sat for the
defaulted security or cbligation, In addition, the Sub-Trust is entitied to a return of any assets which have been pladged
as collateral to the counterparty. The nobtichal amount of the Sub-Trust's credit default swaps, i any, 15 disclosed n
the Schedules of Investments. There were no credit default swaps as at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018

The Sub-Trust had no indivedual counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the net assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Units as at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018,

The kaster Fund had no counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of NAV as at 30 September 2019 and 30
September 2018,

The Sub-Trust measures credd risk and expected credit losses usng probabiddy of defaul, expesure at default and
loss gwen default Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probabidity of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity o meet their contractual obbigations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized
based on 12-month expected credit Iosses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Sub-Trust

4
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{d} Additional Risks
Additional nsks include, but are not limited to the following;

i Capial Risk Management

The captal of the Sub-Trust is represented by the net assets attributable 1o Holders of Redeemable Pambcipating Units
The armaunt of the net assets attributabde to Holkders of Redeemable Participating Units can change signficantly on a
daily basis as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of Unitholder The Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's abiity to conlinue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for Unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base (o suppon the
dewvelopment of the investment activities of the Sub-Trust.

{id) Concantration Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and investment themes, A consequence of a Emited
number of mvestments is that performance may be more favorably or unfavorably affected by the performance of an
individual investment.

(i) Operational Risk

Cperational risk is the potental for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, transaction processing
and settlement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Mote 7, maintain contrals and
procedures for the purpese of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers
are performed on a regular basis by the Investment Advisors, Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 100%
effectve

) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversely affect the
Sub-Trust.

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends in certain
jurigdictons where the Sub-Trust imvests,

The interpretation and applicabdity of the tax law and regulations by tax authorities at times may not be clear or
consistent Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as liabilites. However, some tax cbligations
afe subject to uncertainty and may result in addibional tax kabilties, serest and penalies based en future actions,
interpretations or judgments of these authonties covering current and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
ako change, creating of removing an obligation for the Sub-Trust to accrue for a potential tax Habikty, Consequently, it
is possible that certain potential tax ablsgations which currently are not probable may become so which may result in
additional tax Habdites for the Sub-Trust in the future and these additional llabilities may be matenal, Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax liabikties ultimately bome by the Sub-Trust, including at the
tirne of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adversa impact
on investors at that time.

Additional detads of risk not dsclosed in these Financial Statements can be found in the Sub-Trusts Offering
Memorandum

12. Credit Institutions

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 Seplember 2018, all cash and cash equivalents and amounts due fromfto brokers
were held by the following credit instituions with a credit rating of Aor higher, Credit institution ratings are cbtained from
EEP's F Moody's Investars Service [ Fitch Ratings and are unaudited.

k1]
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GS CoGos & Capital Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

12.

13,

14.

15.

16E.

17.

18.

Credit Institutions [continued)

Assals 30- ] 30-Sep-2018
% of Net % of Nat
Counterpary uso Assals ust Assels
Brawwm Brothers Harriman & Co' 1,815 [ 3,566 0.0
JPMorgan Chase & Co/® 200,504 1.51 - -
Sumitome Mitsul Barlljl'lg ':MHM""' - - 1,003 520 1.52
Total cash and cash equivalents 902,852 1.51 1,007 486 1.53
Due from brokers:
Cifibank HA™ 310.000 .52 - -
Tols duwe froem Brokers 310,000 0.52 = .
Uil — Sl o L petoynl

S Tiaras Cpiriat
o Spntrabid — cash colabecal Ao Sateard Boniign aumency contrads
Aieliecty okl Enounts Meumsng 1o ki than 0 G055

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates [against USD) were used to conven the investments and other assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than USD;

30-Sep-2019 30-Sop-2018
Euro (EUR) 0917263 0.BB0S5E
Japanesa Yen [JFY) 10607500 113.58500

Soft Commissions
The Sub-Trust may pay commissions for execution anly andfor for execution and investment research. The Sub-Trust

did not otherwse enter into any third party soft commission arrangements for the years ended 30 September 2019 and
30 September 2018

Contingent Liabilities

Thiere were no contingent abilities as at 30 September 2018 and 30 Septermber 2018

Subsequent Events

Mo events occurred subsequent to 30 September 2019 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial
slaternents

Indemnifications
The Sub-Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure

under these arrangements & unknown, However, the Sub-Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these
contracis

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Trustee has approved the financial statemeants on 23 December 2019 and the financial statements may not be
amendad after issuance

36
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 Septmeber 2019

% of
Heldings/ Fair Value Net
Units  Description USD  Assets
Investment Funds®
United States Dollar
431,469  Goldman Sachs CoCos & Capital Secuntes Portfolio - Class 10 58,345,978 93.09
882508 Goldman Sachs USS Liqud Reserves Fund, Class X 832 509 1.48
Total Investment Funds 55 428 ABT 8357
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held fer Portfolio Hedging Purpeses
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Assets
141172019 JPY 21,680 260 (=53] 204,016 Citibank NA (568) (0,00}
Tetal Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolio Hedging
Purposes {868} (0.00)
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currenc Bought  Curren Sold Counterparty UsD Assets
141172018 ush 45,8681 JEY 5,350,811 Citibank MNA 203 000
141117219 uso 343198 JPY 36,115,000 JPMergan Chase & Co 8,039 0.1
141117219 ush 431 678 JPY 45,627,000 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 8,247 .02
ZTnama ush 60604 EUR 54 472 Citibank MA a70 0.00
Tetal Unrealized Galn on Forward Foreign Cumrency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 17,459 0.03
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Mt
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USsSD Assots
2rirame EUR 4 645 288 UsD 5,165,525 JPMorgan Chase & Co (80,083) (0.14)
ZrnEma EUR 4,645 298 ush 5167 675 Citibank MA (82,244) {014)
1411728 JPY 6,630,000 ush 61,639 Royal Bank of Canada (111) {0.00)
141117208 JPY 16,323 462 ush 180,102 JPMorgan Chasa & Co (775) (0.00)
14111728 JBY 1,032, 746.006 UsD 9,819,347 Mearill Lynch (235 168) (0.38)
14M11r2019 JPY 1,054,837 16T UsD 10,020,547 Citibank NA (233 .218) {0.38)
Total Unrealized Loss an Farward Foreign Currency Contracts held far Class Hedging
Purposes [631,607) (1.08)

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.
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GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 20 Septmeber 2019

% of
Fair Value Net
Total Investments UsD Assels
Total Investment Funds 59,428 487 8957
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purpases ) ) ) (asa) (0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 17,450 003
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes E31,607) (1.08)
Cther Assets and Liakilities 872 554 1.48
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 59,685 425 100.00
Represents afliliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
EUR  Ewro
JPY Japanese Yen
USD  United States Daollar
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. T
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GS CoGos & Capital Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2018

% of
Haldings! Fair Walue Met
Units  Description USD  Assets
Investment Funds®
United States Dallar
535,608  Goldman Sachs CoCes & Capital Securities Portfolio - Class 10 65,709,180 9818
441,575  Goldman Sachs USS Liqud Reserves Fund, Class X 441,575 087
Total Investment Funds B5 950, 755 EEX-E]
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Assets
Australia & Menw Zealand
24102018 ush 53,403 JEY 5,927 027 Banking Group Ltd 1,136 000
24M02018 Ush B0, 620 JEY 8 978 406 Memill Lynch 1523 000
24102018 Ush 126,479 JBY 14,113,142 Deutsche Bank AG 2023 oo
24M02M8 uso 224 M6 JPY 24,765,000 Roeyal Bank of Scotland PLC 5628 om
201128 uso 150,828 EUR 128,473 Citibank MA 1,001 000
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 11,311 0.02
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Assets
21117218 EUR 5,718,572 UsD 6,680,052 Citibank NA {14,302) 002)
20112NE EUR 5,716.572 ush 6,681,393 Memill Lynch (14,743 (002)
2410218 JPY  1,197,376.076 usD 10,830,857 Memill Lynch [280,885) (0.43)
24nMo2018 JFY 1,187 378,077 usD 10,838 884 Royal Bank of Scotland FLC (280,021) (0.42)
2111728 s 23 858 EUR 20,524 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC [43) (0,00
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Fareign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (585 5594) [0.85)
% of
Fair Value Mt
Total Investments UsD Assets
Total Investmaent Funds 65,950,755 9983
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 1,311 0.02
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (289,984) (0.85)
Ciher Assets and Liabilities 680,251 1.02
Het Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 66,052,323 100.00

Represents affiliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:

EUR Euro
JPY Japanese Yen
USD United States Dollar

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.
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2020
57,521,063.15 6,273,247,147
423,954.46 46,236,473
21,129,980.47 2,304,435,670
8,243,336.10 899,018,235
4,056,254.84 487,967,457
4,686,863.75 563,829,709

1,564,485,174

390,202,337

2,297,271.387

650,500.176

469,694.205

407,561.755

179,508.035

33,666.950
9.20 1,003
12.67 1,382
8.64 1,039
11.50 1,383
8,715

11,590
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2020
187,117,965.90 204
5,051,655
2015 37,117,968.52
2016 37,117,968.52
2017 37,117,968.52
2017 11 187,117,965.90
2018 187,117,965.90
2019 187,117,965.90
2020 187,117,965.90

Q@
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(a (b

(d

(e

60

2019 12

35 5,086,799,105.27
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131

23 103

2020 31
109.06
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017
31.1,31.3 3,714,129,527 405,062,966  2,294,618,594 250,251,104
3,15,31.1,31.3 3,533,550,709 385,369,040  4,079,919,230 444,955,991
2,311,150,709 252,054,096  3,137,919,230 342,221,471
1,222,400,000 133,314,944 942,000,000 102,734,520
31.1,31.3 372,880 40,666 265,472 28,952
4,15,31.1,31.3 2,834 309 14,984 1,634
5 3,783,033 412,578 4,125,181 449,892
257 28 180 20
6,15 36,979,553 4,032,990 24,028,149 2,620,510
7 7,288,818,793 794,918,578  6,402,971,790 698,308,103
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017

15,31.1 1,794,570,343 195,715,842  2,103,521,459 229,410,050
1,565,940,343 170,781,454  2,103,521,459 229,410,050
228,630,000 24,934,388 0 0
8,15,31.1 5,073,055,610 553,267,445 3,913,497,702 426,806,059
5,071,655,610 553,114,761  3,913,497,702 426,806,059
1,400,000 152,684 0 0
9 2,206,816 240,675 1,867,543 203,674
10,15 15,704,349 1,712,716 18,519,456 2,019,732
18,148,556 1,979,282 20,211,255 2,204,239
11 16,536,604 1,803,482 18,691,834 2,038,531
12 1,611,952 175,799 1,519,421 165,708
13 187,117,966 20,407,085 187,117,966 20,407,085
14 158,191,749 17,252,392 124,372,931 13,564,112
14 3,259 355 4,686 511
39,820,145 4,342,785 33,858,792 3,692,640
16 7,288,818,793 794,918,578  6,402,971,790 698,308,103
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017
17,31.1 541,339 59,038 578,509 63,092
541,339 59,038 578,509 63,092

20 92,427,954,484 10,080,192,716 81,804,130,253 8,921,558,445
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31

2018 2017
81,824,073 8,923,733 54,056,442 5,895,396
5,448,991 594,267 2,221,669 242,295
31,789,988 3,467,016 27,650,438 3,015,557
(40,218,579)  (4,386,238)  (16,495,414)  (1,798,990)
(12,070,732)  (1,316,434)  (9,439,648)  (1,029,488)
(392,542) (42,811) (254,716) (27,779)
92 10 750,200 81,817
92 10 750,200 81,817
21 115,660,720 12,613,958 106,256,230 11,588,304
56,930,365)  (6,208,826)  (52,040,385)  (5,675,524)
4,336,416 472,930 6,388,924 696,776
22 4,322,262 471,386 2,484,563 270,966
(51,755,210)  (5,644,423)  (51,064,124)  (5,569,053)
24,25  (20,839,657)  (2,272,773)  (20,806,005)  (2,269,103)
(16,818,051)  (1,834,177)  (16,838,247)  (1,836,379)
(2,632,035) (287,050)  (2,420,642) (263,995)
(1,596,915) (174,160)  (1,541,426) (168,108)
26,30  (30,915,553)  (3,371,650)  (30,258,119)  (3,299,950)
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(1,767,494) (192,763)  (2.,589,398) (282, 400)
23 (605,778) (66,066) (507,993) (55,402)
11,27.1  (13,169,369)  (1,436,251)  (11,831,429)  (1,290,336)

41,696,768 4,547,450 35,407,616 3,861,555
27.2  (1,876,623) (204, 665) (1,548,824) (168,915)
39,820,145 4,342,785 33,858,792 3,692,640
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UFJ S.A.

2018 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016 1
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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1.3.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2017

2018
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1997 12 16
1.25
2018 12 31 2017

2.7.

2.5

2.8.

10

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.
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2018 2017

543,400,000 135,000,000

679,000,000 807,000,000

1,222,400,000 942,000,000

2,834 2017 14,984

3,824,149 115,904  (660,418)  (183,596) 3,096,039 2,325,231 770,808
1,336,134 111,903  (644,414)  (64,147) 739,476 574,142 165,334
2,488,015 4,001 (16,004)  (119,449) 2,356,563 1,751,089 605,474

18,907,410 1,509,749 (419,631)  (814,339) 19,183,189 16,170,964 3,012,225
16,961,971 1,509,749 (419,631)  (814,339) 17,237,750 14,225,525 3,012,225

1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0
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2018 12 31
4,008,887,622

2018 2017
0 1,258,254
15,591,714 4,666,886
921,843 283,041
2,124,415 1,969,915
9,573,008 8,936,086
5,836,414 3,813,147
481,264 644,074
765 134,936
62,649 690,238
483,831 319,145
162,315 671,075
664,574 393,820
1,076,761 247,532
36,979,553 24,028,149

5,393,986,107

2018 12 31 1,400,000
2018 2017
618,902 841,978
1,587,914 1,025,565
2,206,816 1,867,543

219/315
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2018 12 31

12

13
2018 12 31
49,080

2.2

2018 12 31

187,117,966
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2018 2017
6,908,708 6,607,907
3,224,725 5,653,314
3,347,939 885,708

308,226 524,416
1,717,819 4,680,727
122,543 142,861
74,389 24,523
15,704,349 18,519,456
1987 16
1983 23

2018 2017
1,611,952 1,519,421
1,611,952 1,519,421

5,002,575
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14
2018 3,711,797 120,661,134 4,686
2017 12 31 0 0 33,858,792
0 0 (41,401)
2018 0 8,700,000 (8,700,000)
2012 0 (3,304,122) 3,304,122
0 26,730,000 (26,730,000)
1,692,940 0 (1,692,940)
2018 12 31 5,404,737 152,787,012 3,259
10
10
2015 11 19 Fort. N° 47bis
2014 2015
2014 2015
22,444,927 2017 17,049,049
2018 23 8,700,000 2018
2012 3,304,122
2018 12 31
2018
2013 3,101,000
2014 -2015 3,019,136
2016 3,348,440
2017 4,276,351
2018 8,700,000
2018 12 31 22,444,927
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31

575 2013

2018 12 31

16
2018 12 31
2,973,768,077

17

18
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2018 2017
3,314,382,591 3,789,891,462
24,033,836 10,791,736
3,338,416,427 3,800,683,198
2018 2017
1,787,952,744 2,098,463,451
1,001,503,360 659,726,748
5,654,686 4,972,871
2,795,110,790 2,763,163,070
24
2013 26
3,450,572,108
2018

3,313,256,918
15,595,810
121,719,380

3,450,572,108

3,951,265,679

2018

541,339

2017

578,509

2017



19

20

21

2018 12 31

2017 12 31
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2018 2017
6,499,120 521,191

2018 2017
21,506,351 19,403,089
80,663,753 74,948,090
11,772,959 10,347,746
921,843 1,003,474
795,814 553,831
115,660,720 106,256,230
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22
2018 2017
2013 2014 2015 2017 2,530,324 0
1,151,445 226,068
414,867 568,181
70,598 67,500
2012 -2014 0 1,441,990
155,028 180,824
4,322,262 2,484,563
23
2018 2017
345,919 346,695
220,859 137,159
7,836 13,741
31,164 10,398
605,778 507,993
24
2018 2017
29 30
71 66
67 74
167 170
25
2018 2017
5,084,843 5,832,575
875,409 871,739
4,209,434 4,960,836
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
26
2018 2017
1,372,967 1,165,998

1,264,913 1,041,720
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2,847,608 1,442,936
3,550,904 4,376,343
1,141,991 1,109,879
4,997,353 5,192,885
2,847,497 3,412,539
11,679,286 11,204,978
363,250 384,358
203,378 226,957
646,406 699,526
30,915,553 30,258,119
2018
27
27.1.
2018 2017
9,760,432 8,893,072
3,408,937 2,938,357
13,169,369 11,831,429
27.2.
2018 2017
1,819,754 1,483,823
56,869 65,001
1,876,623 1,548,824
28
2018 12 31
100
33 100-
8212
100
29
2014 59
2014 49 2015 12 18

100,000 20,000
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107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
2018 12 31
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12

2024
2015
2018
2018 180 (1)
1,686,439 1,988,649
2018 2017
329,206 265,049
139,547 157,633
39,220 41,309
0 26,272

507,973 490,263
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a. 2018 2018 12 31
b.
C.
31
31.1.
2018 12 31
3,714,129,527 0 0 0 3,714,129,527
2,854,550,709 679,000,000 0 0 3,533,550,709
372,880 0 0 0 372,880
0 0 0 2,834 2,834
6,569,053,116 679,000,000 0 2,834  7,248,055,950
1,794,570,343 0 0 0 1,794,570,343
5,073,055,610 0 0 0 5,073,055,610
6,867,625,953 0 0 0 6,867,625,953
541,339 0 0 0 541,339
541,339 0 0 0 541,339
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2017 12 31

2,294,618,594 0 0 2,294,618,59%
3,272,919,230 807,000,000 4,079,919,230
265,472 0 0 265,472

0 0 14,984 14,984
5,567,803,296 807,000,000 14,984  6,374,818,280
2,103,521,459 0 0 2,103,521,459
3,913,497,702 0 0 3,913,497,702
6,017,019,161 0 0 6,017,019,161
578,509 0 0 578,509
578,509 0 0 578,509
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3,271,219,543 3,321,504 0 3,274,541,047 77,666,609

1,394,522,057 0 1,394,522,057 2,067,411

4,665,741,600 3,321,504 0 4,669,063,104 79,734,020

3,303,598,230 3,270,027 0 3,306,868,257 76,992,277

854,553,985 0 0 854,553,985 2,708,455

4,158,152,215 3,270,027 0 4,161,422,242 79,700,732
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
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3,257,117,915 0 0 3,257,117,915 24,750,086

812,986,742 0 0 812,986,742 2,151,255

4,070,104,657 0 0 4,070,104,657 26,901,341

3,057,118,085 0 0 3,057,118,085 22,397,245

2,201,155,324 0 0 2,201,155,324 8,610,571

5,258,273,409 0 0 5,258,273,409 31,007,816
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
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31.3.

2018 12 31

2018

3,714,129,527
3,714,129,527

3,533,550,709
180,725,105
722,872,089
2,605,130,138

2017

2,294,618,594
2,294,618,594

4,079,919,230

470,317,266
1,493,150, 265
2,104,162,750

5,033,138 9,871,366
19,790,239 2,417,583
372,880 265,472
50,865 4,473
318,231 39,775

4 221,074

3,780 150
2,834 14,984

0 12,008

2,834 2,976

7,248,055,950

6,374,818,280
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31.4.
2018 12 31
2018 2018
3,160,915,130 75,043,013
113,600,617 2,623,478
25,301 118
1,394,522,057 2,067,411
4,669,063,105 79,734,020
2017 12 31
2017 2017
1,151,209, 346 8,548,868
2,105,636,836 16,199,995
271,733 1,223
812,986,742 2,151,255

4,070,104,657 26,901,341
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

BALANCE SHEET
Decamber 31, 2018
{in USD)
ASSETS
Hotes 2018 2017
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks A, A 3.T14.129.527 2,204 618,594
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,15 3.4, 3.3 3.533.550.709 4.079.919.230
a) repayable on demand 2.311.150.709 3.137.919.230
b) other loans and advances 1,222 400.000 942,000,000
Loans and advances 1o Customens 31.1., 3.3, aT2.880 265472
Shares and other variable-yleld securities 4,15, 31.1,, 31.3, 2834 14.984
Fixed Assets 5 3.783.033 4125181
Other assets 257 180
Prepayments and accrued income 6, 15 36.979.553 24,028,149
TOTAL ASSETS 7 7.288.818.793 “6.402.971.700

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-T-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2018
{in USD)
- eontinued -

LIABILITIES

Notes 2018 2017
Amounts owed to credit institutions 15 M. 1.794.570.343 2.103.521.459
a) repayable on demand 1.565.940.343 2.103.521.459
b) with agreed maturity dates 228.630.000 0
Amounts owed to customers 8,15, 31.1. 5.073.055.610 3.913.497.702
a) repayable on demand 5.071.655.610 3.913.497 702
b} with agreed malurity dataes 1.400.000 o
Other liabilities ] 2,206.816 1.B67.543
Accruals and deferred incoma 10, 15 15.704.349 18.519.456
Provisions 18.148.556 20.211.255
a) provisions for taxaton 11" 16.536.604 168.691.834
b) ather provisions 12 1.611.952 1.519.421
Subscribed capital 13 1B7.117.966 187.117.966
Reserves 14 158.191.749 124.372.931
Result brought forward 14 3.250 4,686
Profit for the financial year 39.820.145 33.858.792
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16 7.288.818.793 B.AD2.971.790

The accompanying noles ferm an integral part of the annual accounts.

“H-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4.
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
December 31, 2018

{in USD)
Notes 2018 T
Contingent labilitles 17, 31.1. 541.339 576.508
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral sacurity 241,338 578.500
Fiduciary operations 20 92.427.954 484 B1,804.130.253

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts,
-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended Decamber 31, 2018

{in USD)
Notes anig 017
Interest receivable and similar income 81.624.073 54.056.442
of which :
- Megative interast received on deposits 544890 2221669
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 31.7089.988 27650438
Interest payable and similar charges [40.218.579) [16.495.414)
wiich
MNegative interest paid on loans and advances (12.070.732) (9.438.648)
Interest Loss from foresgn curmency swap (3892.542) (254,716}
Income from securities 42 TE0.200
Income from shares and other variable yield secwrities a2 750.200
Commission receivable Fal 115.660.720 106.256.230
Commission payable (56.930.365) (52.040.385)
Met profit on financial operations 4.338.416 £.388.924
Other operating income 22 4.322.262 2.484.563
General administrative expenses (51.755.210) (51.064.124)
a)} stalf costs 24, 25 (20.830.657) [ 20.806.005)
of which:
= wages and salahes (16.818.0581) (16.838.247)
- social security costs (2 632.035) (2.420.642)
of which;
- social securnity costs relating to pensians (1.596.915) (1.541.426)
b) other administrative expenses 26, 30 {30.915.553) (30,258,119)
Value adjustments in respect of tangible (1.767.494) (2.589.398)
and intangible assets
Other operating charges 23 (605.778) {507.993)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11, 27.4. (13.169.369) (11.831.429)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 41.696.768 35.407 616
Other taxes not shown under the preceding items 27.2, (1.876.623) (1.548.824)
Profit for the financial year 38.820.145 33.856.T82

The accompanying notes form an mbegral part of the annual accounts.

=11 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018

MOTE 1 - GENERAL

1.1,

Corporate matters

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in
Luxembourg on April 11, 1974 as a socislé anonyme.

On April 1, 1996, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd., mearged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to foarm
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd., and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.A. changed its name to Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi {Luxembourg) S.A..

On October 1, 2005, the indirect sharshalder, Mitsubishi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Haoldings, Inc. (LIFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UF. Financial Group (MUFG),

On January 1, 2006, the Pasent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited o
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubighi LIFJ Lid,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S.A. changed its
nama to Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (Luxembourg) S.A.,

O Agiril 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointty capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking
Corporation by 70% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi UFJ Finansial Group (MUFG). Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Milsubishi LFJ
(Luxembeurg) 5.4, changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.4, (MUGC),

On April 28, 2008, MITSUBISHI UF ) Global Custedy S.A., has issued 49.080 new shares and the capital af the
Bank has been increased by USD 1.817.968.52. The total subscribed share capital is currently sa1 at

USD 37.117.968,52. The two major sharehalders of the Bank hald 92, 25% of the capital, Milsubishi UF.J Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd. by 28 53%.

On August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5_A. has established an extemnal branch located at

Ormonde House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Irefand. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody 5.4, Dublin
Branch is registened as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1993, under the number 907648,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.4, has changed its name to MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4, (MIBL).

On May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voling shares af Mitsubishi UFJ
Invastor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A..

The members of the Beard of Directors are Senior Executives of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Group
and Independant Direclors. The business palicy and valuation principles, unless prescrbed by the legal requiremeants

@xghng in Luxembourg, are determingd and moniloned by the Board of Directors in accordance with those applied in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Nature of business
The object of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the accownt of third parties esthar within ar

outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial operations, as well as all other operations,
whather industrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object descrbed above.

More specifically, the Bank concentrates its activitios on investment management Services.

A significant volume of the Bank's transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UFJ

Financial Group.

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars {ISD), the currency In which the capdal is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accordance with the laws and regulations
in force in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepbed in the banking
sector in tha Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

=14 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= conlinued -

In observing these, the following significant accownting policies are applied.

Aszats and liabiities are stated in the balance sheat on the date the amounts concermed becoma clearad funds, that is,
on their date of effective transfor,

Foreign curmancies

Thea Bank maintains a multi-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the curmency or curmencies of
the transaction, on the day on which the contract is conduded.

Assets and liabilities are converted into USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Both
realised and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, excepd for those resulting from ilems specfically covered by a forward foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded al hsioncal exchange rates,

Revenues and expenses in foreign currencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the year-and, all unsatiled forevard transactions are translated into USD at the forward rate prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturilies.

Resulls on unsettied forward transactons linked 1o spot Iransactions and on swap transactions are accruad at the

balance shieet date. In case of unrealised resulls on position covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized

at year end.

Financial inslrumants darmalives

The Bark's commitments deriving from the derivatives financial instruments such as intenest rate swaps, forward rafe
agreements, financial futures and ophons are recorded an the iransaction date amang the off Balance sheet itarms.

- 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised lesses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
rcorded for the year 2018 (2017 USD nil).

N provision i% set up in those cases where a financial instrumeant clearly covers an assat or a liability and sconamic
unity is established or where a financial instrement is hedged by a reverse transaciion so that no open position exisis.

Itis the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtiul and irecoverable debts, as deemed
appropriata by the Board of Directors.

Value adjusimaents, if any, are deducted from the assats to which they relate,

The value adjustments for possible losses on lbans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
relate.

In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lemp-sum provigion for fsk exposures, as
defined in the legislation goveming prudential supenvision of banks, The purposs of the provision is 1o take account of
risks which are likely to crystallise but which have not yet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual
aceounts,

Pursuant to the Instrections issuad by the Direclew des Confributions on December 16, 1897, this provision should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposuras,

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of Decamber 31, 2018 (2017: USD 0).

16 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

Translerable securilies

Transferable secunties are recorded initially at their purchasa price. The average cost method ks used for initial
recagnition. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5. or ansing from a diminution of value, are deducted

from the account balance,

Tangible and intangitle assets ane valued ol purchase price. The value of langible and intangible fxed assots with
limsted useful economéc lives is reduced by valuve adjustments calculated to wrile off the value of such assets
systematically over their useful economic lives as follows:

= Hardware equipment: 4 years;
« Software: 4 years and 5 years;

+« Ofher intangible assats: 5 years;
+  Other tangible assels: 10 years,

At the Balance Sheet date, shares in affilated undertakings held as financial fixed assets are stated at the lower of cost

or market valua.

Taxes

Taxes ara accounted for on an accrnuals basis in the accounts of the year to which thay relate.

Prapayment and accrued incoms

This asset item includes expenditure incurred during the financial year but redating to a subsequent financial year.

-§7 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= Gontinweed -

Ancruals and deferred ncome

This liability item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

Provisions

Provisions are intemded to cover losses or debts the nature of which is cleary defined and which, at the date of the
balance shaet are aither likely to be incurred or cartain to be incurred but uncerain & 1o Iher aMount of as 16 the date
an which they will arise.

Reven "

The Bank’s main streams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank eams fee and
commission income from a wide range of senices it provides to its customers,

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are perormed of recognized over the period that the
sarvices ana provided.

HOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances 1o cledil nstitutions athes than those repayable on demand may be analysed according to their
remaining maturity as follows:

2018 2017

uso uso

Mot more than three months 343,400,000 135, 000.000
More than three months but less than one year 679,000,000 BOT.000.000
1.222.400.000 842 .000.000

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable securities shown under the itlem “Shargs and ather variable yield securities” consist entirely of unlisted
securities for USD 2834 (2017 14.084),

= 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continwed -

NOTE 6 - PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:

2018 2017

usD uso

Advance paid 10 IRS, US Tax authoritias [¥] 1.250.254
Accrpid inlerest income 15.581.714 4 666 886
Commission from the Management Company 921.843 283.041
Commission on fiduciary operations 2124415 1.968.915
Commission on global custody 9,573,008 B.036.086
Commission an investment funds 5.836.414 3813147
Prepaid general expenses 481 264 644.074
Prepaid income taxes Té5 1349386
VAT recovarable 62649 G00.238
Othar accrued income 483.831 319145
v Cornmissions 162.315 BT1.075
Cher prepayments 664.574 383820
Accrued Inlerest inCOMe On SWaps 1.076.761 247 532
36970553 24028149

NOTE T - FOREIGN CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2018, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assels dencminated in foreign currencies,

translated into USD, is USD 5.393.986 107 (2017: USD 4.008 887 622).

MNOTE 8 - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2018, debts other than those repayable on demand with a residual maturity less than 1
manth amounted to USD 1.400.000.

=20 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING {LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Dacember 31, 2018

NOTE 9 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank’s other liabilities may be analysed as follows:

018 2017
uso uso
Preferantial creditors 518.902 #41.978
Sundry creditors 1.587.914 1.025.565
2.206.816 1.867.543
NOTE 10 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
The: Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:
2ME 2017
usD usoD
Accrued commission 6.908.7048 6.607.907
Accrued general expenses 3224725 5.653.314
Accruad interest expenses 3.347.939 BB5.708
Deferrad income related to custody fees 08226 524,416
Meubralization of foreign exchange results on position coverad 1.717.819 4680, 727
by fargign exchange swap (note 2.2.)
Other accrued axpenses 122543 142,561
Other suspense receipts [*) 74,389 24.523
15.704.349 18,519,456

{*) Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the 31/12/2018 to the relative beneficiary.

=21 =
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= ontinwed =

NOTE 11 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION

Under Luxembouwrg fiscal regulations, the Bank's fiscal Balance Sheet and i3 results of operations ane required
to be axpressed in Euro. The eamings of the Bank as determined for iscal purposes can differ substantially
from eamings reported for accounting purposes as a result of unrealised profits or losses on the ranslation of
thex Bank's equity into Euro equivalents for fiscal purposes.

In accordance with the Law of July 16, 1987 (as modified), which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation
gaing on exchange on the imwastment of equity in banks, unrealised gains which may be cawsed by a rise in the
USD against the Euro can, under nomeal circumstances, be neutralised to the extent of the amount that
exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carmed Tonward.

In accondance with the Law of July 23, 1883, howeaver, which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation gains
on exchange on the investiment of equity in banks, future unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
US dollar against the Euro can, under narmal circumstances, only ba neutralisad to the exent of the amoant

that exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carried forward.

Az at Dacarmber 31, 2018, there are no deferred tax liabilities.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decembear 31, 2018
- continued -

MOTE 12 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions ame made of provision for remunaration.

2018 2017

uso usD

Provigion for remuneration 1,611,952 1519421
__ 1611852 1519.421

NOTE 13 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187.117.966 for
5.002 575 shares of Class A and 49,080 shares of Class B.

NOTE 14 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought

reserve reserves forward

uso uso uso

Balance at January 1, 2018 3.711.797 120.661.134 4 686

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 o o 33.858.702

Appropriation of profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders Q [ {41.401)

- Transfer to reserves for Net Worth Tax 2018 Q 8.700.000 (8.700.000)
- Transfer from Reserva for Net Worth Tax

2012 0 (3.304.122) 3.304.122

- Alocation (o Free resere 4] 26.730.000 (26.730.000)

- Allscation to Legal reserve 1.692.940 0 (1.682.940)

Balance at December 31, 2018 5.404.737 152,787 012 3.259

-23-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continued -

Under Luxembouwrg law, the Bank must approprate 1o a legal reserve an amount equivalent 1o at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital. This appropriaticn is made in the
Tollowing year. Distribution of the legal reserse is restricted. This requirement is satisfied as the Bank has
reachad 10% of the issued subscribad capital,

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax cfedil is hewever, limited to the amount of the corporate income Eax due for the previous
year before the imputation of any tax credits. In order o profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itsell 1o
post before the and of the subsequent year an amount egqual to five times the nat worth tax credit 1o a special
resarve, which has o be mainlained for a period of five years.

The Circular |. Fort. N 47bis ssued by the Luxembourg Tax Authorities on November 19, 2015, provides for a
dedicated rule allowing the taxpayer to create only one net wealth tax reserve to fully benefit from the Net
Wealth Tax reduction for both 2014 and 2015. This reserve should cormespond Lo five times the amount of the
highest reduction available for 2014 and 2015 (transitional measure). The special reserve for el worh tax is
included in the: Bank's other reserve for a total amount of USD 22.444.927 (2017: USD 17.049.049 ),

Ag regobied in the Annual General Meating dated March 23, 2018, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 8.700.000 to special reserve for Net Worth Tax 2018 and reversed the available spacial resenve for Net

Worth Tax constituted in 2012 which amounted to USD 3,304,122,

The accumulated balance of special reserve for Net Worh Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2018.

2018

Resarve for Nat

Waorth Tax

Years uso
2013 3101000
2014 - 2015 3019136
2016 3348440
207 4.276.351
2ma 8.700.000
Balance at Decamber 31, 2018 22444927
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MITSUBISHI UFJ) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

MOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at Decamber 31, 2018, the following balances with related panies ane outstanding:

ASSETS
2018 2017
UsD uspD
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.314.382.50 3,789.891.462
Prepaymants and accreed income 24.033.835 10.791.736
3338 416427 3.800.683.198
LIABILITIES
2018 017
uso uso
Amounis owed to credil insbilulions 1.787.952.744 2,008 463 451
Amounts owed to cuslomerns 1.001,503.360 6450, T26.748
Accruals and delerrod incoma 5,654 686 4972871
2.795.110.780 2763 163,070

The Bank has not entered into any significant transactions with related parties as defined in International
Accounting Standards 24 “Related Party Disclosures”™ which were not made on terms equivalent to those that
pravail in amn's length transactions as of December 31, 2018 and for the year then ended.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

Al the request of the Bank, the CSSF has granted a total exemplion for the exposurnes lowards the group
{Mitsubishi UF.J Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure limits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EU) Mo 5752013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As al Dacember 31, 2018, the amount towards the group falling under this exemplion amounts to
USD 3.450.572.108 and can be analysed as follows:

2018

uso

Loans and advances to credit institutions 3313256918
Prepayments and accrued income 15.585.810
Forgign exchange transactions (Market Risk method) 121.719.380
3450572108

MNOTE 16 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2018, the aggregate amounts of liabilities denominated in foraign currencies translated into

USDis USD 3.951.265.679 (2017. USD 2.973.768.077 ).

NOTE 17 - COMTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent Eabiliies may be analysed as follows:

2018 2017
uso uso
Counter-guarantees issued 541.339 578,500

Ag al the year-end, thene wane no relatad party balances.

T
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Dacember 31, 2018
- conlinued -

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into cerain commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the
Off Balance Sheet llems, bul which ane significant for the purposes of assessing the financal sifuation of the

Bank, Details of such commitmants ane as follows:

2018 2017
uso uso
Commitments in respect of fived rental payments contracted on
buildings 6.499.120 521181

As at the year-gnd, there are no related party balances.
NOTE 19 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET
RATES
The following types of forward ransactions are outstanding as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
ticas li ha
- Forward exchange transactions {swaps, outrights).
Oparations linked to the foreign currency exchangs rates are made to a large extent for the purposes of
cowvaring the exsting positions.
NOTE 20 - INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Managemant and agency sarvices provided by the Bank includa:

Custody and administration of transferable securities;
Fiduciary represantations;

- Agency functions;
= Portfolio management and adviceg,

=27 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018

- conbinued =
NOTE 21 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2018 2017

usD uso

Fees on Imvestmeant Funds 21,506,351 19.403.083

Feas on Globhal custody from Institutional customers 80.663.753 74948090

Fees on Fiduciary transactions 11.772.950 10,347 746

Fees on Services lo Management Company 521,843 1.003.474

Other fees and commissions T95.814 553.831
115.660.720 106256, 230

Commissions receivable congist of the following:

Fees on Invesiment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Invesiment Funds for cusiody services,
central administration, depasitary and other services. The fees are caloulated on the basis of the value af net
assats of the funds under administration.

Fets on global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commissions charged to institutional
cuglomers for gichal cusiody serices including secuniliss rade management, settlemant, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voting. The fees ane calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions,

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
trangactions, cash management and fiduciary nobtes issuance, The fees ane calculated on the basis of the

assels held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services 1o Managament Company include fees covering functional expenditures and faes for support

services in accordance with the Senvice Level Agreement.

Other fees and commissions include vanous fees such as listing agent fees, guaranies fees, banking services
fees and fund order desk senvices fees.

-28-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2018

= conlinued -
NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2018 2017
uso uso
Adjustment of Income taxes 2013-2014-2015-2017 2.530.324 0
Adjustment for commission previous years 1.151.445 226.068
Income from the adjustment of general expensas
regarding previous years 414867 H68.181
Sub-Rental Fee received from the Management
Company (Senics level agreement) 70.598 67.500
VAT rafund for previous year (2012-2014) 0 1.441.990
Other operating income 155,028 180.824
4,322 262 2484 583
MNOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES
2018 2017
uso uso
Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years 345919 346,895
Commission on previous years 220.859 137.159
Intarest on pravious years T.836 13,741
Cihers oparating losseas 31.164 10,398
BO5.T7E 507.993

.20
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= conlimsed -

NOTE 24 - 5TAFF NUMBERS

The average number or persons employed during the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

20138
Number

Senior managemant 29

Midelle management 71

Employees 67
167

NOTE 25 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017
Number

|Eiz%§

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial bedy of the

Bank by reasan of their responsibilities as follows:

2018

uso

Senlor managernent 5.084.843
Of which varable remunaralion B75.400

Of which fix remunaralion 4.200.434

a7
uso

5832 575

a8r1.739
4,960,836

Dwring the financial yaar, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General

Management were made.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank did not grant any advancas and cradits to the members of the

Board of Directors and Ganeral Managamant.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= contnued -

NOTE 26 - OTHER ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2018 2017

uso uso

Data charges 1.372.067 1.165.998
Maintenance 1.264.913 1.041,720
Membership foes 2.847 608 1.442 936
Professional feas 3550804 4.376.343
Rent and related expenses 1,141,991 1.109.879
Service conlracts 4.997.353 5.192.885
Senice fee 2.847 497 3412539
System cost 11.679.286 11.204.978
Telacommunication expensas 363,250 A8 358
Travelling, maving, business tnps 203.378 236957
Other expenses G468.406 690 526
3.915.553 30,258,119

The increase of the costs for Memberships is due 1o the intrease of the fees paid 1o Single Resoluion Funds

during the year 2018,
NOTE 27 - TAX
271, Taxon it on ordi witi
2018 2017
uso uso
Corporate Incoma Tax 9,760.432 8.893.072
Municipal Businass Tax 3.408.037 2.938.357
13,169.369 11.831.429

3 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -
2732 r n r irg i

2018 2017

uso uso

VAT 1.819.754 1.483 833

Othar taxes 56.869 65,001
1876623 1.548 824

NOTE 28 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank is a jeintly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated undar the laws of Japan and whosa registerad office is in Tokyo.

The annual accounts of the Bank are incheded in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution numbser 33 at Kanto Lecal Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chome, Chivoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan,

The consolidated accounts of the holding company Mitsublshi UFJ Financal Group (MUFG) may be oblained
from the head office at 7-1, Marunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan.

NOTE 28 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resclution, receganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law”), transposing info
Luxambaurgish law the directive 2014/59/EL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of eredit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 2014/49/EL related to deposit guarantes and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continued -

The depesit guaraniee scheme (“Fonds de garantie des dépdis Luxembeourg® (FGOL)) and the investor
compensation system (“Systéme dindemnisation des investissours Luxembourg” (SIIL)) cover efigible
deposits of each deposilor up to an amount of EUR 100,000 and investments up fo an amauwnt of EUR 20,000,
The Law also provides that deposits resulling from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific social or other
purpose are covered for an amount above EUR 100,000 for a period of 12 months,

Credit institutions contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembourg banking resolution fund (*Fonds de
resalution Luxembourg™ (FRL)), respactively to tha FGDL.

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of coverad deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorzed credit institulions in all paricipating Member States. This amount will
be collected during the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGDL is set at 0,8% of covered depasits, as defined in article 17H1) af the
Law, of the relevant credit institutions and is o be reached by the end of 2018 through annual contributions,
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018. When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit institutions are to continue to contribute for 8 additional years in order to constitute an
additicnal safety bulfer of 0.8% of coversd deposits as defined in arficle 180{1) of the Law.

For the year end December 31, 2018, the Bank's annual contribution amounted to EUR 1.686.439

(USD 1.988.640).

-33-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

NOTE 30 - AUDIT FEES

During the financial year, the Bank has been charged by the Audit firm and its entire network with the following

fens (excluding VAT
2018 2017
uso uso
Audit faas 320208 265.049
Audit-Related fees 130.547 157633
Tax fees 39220 41.309
Other fees [1] 26.272
507973 490,263

The Non Audit Services provided during the financial year by the entire network of the Audit firm ncluded the
Tollowing servicas:

a.  ISAE 3402 'S0C 1 Type || Report for the period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018;

b. Preparation of tax retums;
¢, Preparation of VAT refums.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= gontinued -
Informaticn on crpdit gk on pimary non-traging fnancial instrurments

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial

instruments:
2018 2017
Carrying amount Carrying amount
in USD in USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 3T14.129.527 2.294 618.594
EL member countrias AT14.120.527 2204 618,504
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.533.550.709 4.079.919.230
EU member countries 180. 725105 470.317. 256
Marth & Central Armarica T22.872.089 1.493.150.265
Agia 2.605,130.138 2.104.162.750
Europe, non-EU member countries 5033138 9.871.366
Austraita and New Zealand 19. 750, 239 2.417.583
Loans and advances to customers 372 880 265472
EL member courirnes 50,865 4473
North & Central America Me2n FO.TFS
Asia 4 221.074
Europe, non-EU member couniries 3.780 150
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.834 14,954
MNaorth & Cantral Amearica 1] 12.008
EUf member couniries 2834 2,976
Total 7.248.055.950 5.374.818.280

=38 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- eontinued -

N4 Information on dedvative non-trading financial instruments

As at Decamber 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to tha following credit sk on dervatives non-trading financial

instruments:
2018 2018
Motional/payable Risk eguivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU rmamber counlrias J160.915.130 T5.043.013
Amarica T13.600.697 2.623.478
Az 25,301 118
Swaps
ELU mamber courries 1.394,522.057 2067411
Total 4.669.063.105 T79.734.020

- 40 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2018
= continued -

As at December 31, 2017, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk en dervatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2017 2017
Notional/payable Risk equivalent
armount amount
inusD inuUsD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EL mambar counines 1.151.200.346 8548 868
Armarica 2105636836 16,199,995
Agla b Mrack | 1.22%
Swaps
ELU memibar countrias B12.986. 742 2151255
Tatal 4.070.104.657 26.901.344

=41 =
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1
URJ S.A.
2019 30
010 4,663,736,783 508,627,134
020
030 3,027,015, 686 330,126,331
040 1,636,721,097 178,500,803
050 18,644,871 2,033,410
060 18,644,871 2,033,410
070
080
090
096 0 0
097
098
099
100 0 0
120
130
141 2,823 308
142 2,823 308
143
144
181 2,675,600,619 291,801,004
182
183 2,675,600,619 291,801,004
240
250
260
270 6,210,745 677,344
280 6,210,745 677,344
290
300 2,603,893 283,981
310
320 2,603,893 283,981
330 762 83
340 762 83
350
360 24,427,298 2,664,041
370
380 7,391,227,793 806,087,303
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UFJ

2019

30
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010

22,491,813

2,452,957

020

22,491,813

2,452,957

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110

6,918,086,851

754,486,552

120

6,912,629,893

753,891,416

130

140

5,456,958

595,136

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

16,886,312

1,841,621

250

16,073,020

1,752,924

260

813,291

88,698

270

280

24,020,784

2,619,707

290

300

6,981,485,760

761,400,837
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UFJ

2019

30

S.A.

010

187,117,966

20,407,085

020

187,117,966

20,407,085

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190

(67,376)

(7.348)

200

210

197,956,757

21,589,164

220

230

197,956,757

21,589,164

240

250

24,734,686

2,697,565
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260
270 0 0
280
290
300 409,742,033 44,686,466
310 7,391,227,793 806,087,303
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(¢
UFJ S.A.

2019 30

010 48,948,146 5,338,285

020 18,132,356 1,977,515

025

030

041

051 24,738,564 2,697,988

070

080 1,532,995 167,188

085 4,544,232 495,594

090 28,855,205 3,146,949

100 244,519 26,667

110

120 20,439,549 2,229,137

130

140

145 8,171,138 891,144

150

160 0 0

170

175

191

192

200 65,063,645 7,095,841

210 32,154,727 3,506,795

220 0 0

231

241

260

270

280 7,431,962 810,530

287

290

300

310

330

340 835,872 91,160

350 1,298,939 141,662

355 59,970,753 6,540,410
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360 24,994,294 2,725,878
370 10,220,443 1,114,642
380 14,773,851 1,611,236
390 1,322,302 144,210
400 676,705 73,801
410
420 645,598 70,409
425 0 0
426
427
430 0 0
440
450
460 289,086 31,528
481
491 289,086 31,528
510
520 0 0
530
540
550
560
570
580
590
600
610 33,365,071 3,638,795
620 8,630,385 941,230
630 24,734,687 2,697,565
640 0 0
650
660
670 24,734,687 2,697,565
680
690 24,734,687 2,697,565
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@ Brown
Brothers Harriman Trust Company Cayman Limited

(

2019 12 200 1,812
(

1985
2020

(2 MUFG S.A. MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.
(

2020 7,375,000 8,721
(

MUFG
S.A.
2011 2011 61

(€] Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(

2019 12 10 1,000 1,101 5,060
(
4 Goldman Sachs Asset

Management International

(

2018 12 1,756 9,151
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@ Goldman Sachs Asset
Management L.P.

(

2018 12 39 42 5,334
(

1940
(6
Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

(

2018 12 14 15 2,684
(
@ Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Co., Ltd.

(

2019 12 9,000
(

1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28

(8
(

2019 10 80
(

2020

2020 405
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as trustee
of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GS CoCos & Capital Securities Fund (the* Sub-Trust” ), a sub-trust of
MUGC GS Cayman Fund, as at 30 September 2019, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust"s financial statements comprise:

the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2019;

the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2019;

the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units for the year then ended;

the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

23 December 2019

306/315



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ S.A.
L 1150 287 289
UFJ S.A. 2018
12 31

2018 12 31

EU No.537/2014 2016 23 CSSF
ISAs

Réviseur d’ Entreprises Agréé

CSSF
IESBA
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To the Board of Directors of

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
287-289, Route d*Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the annual accounts

Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING
(LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (the "Bank'™), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2018,
and the profit and loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2018 and the results of its operations
for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements
relating to the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our responsibilities under those
Regulation, Law and standards are further described in the "Responsibilities of the Réviseur
d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the annual accounts" section of our report. We are also
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the annual accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those
ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenues recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be one of
most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.14 - Revenue
Recognition and Note 21 on Commission
Receivable of the annual accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
115,660,720 as of December 31, 2018.
Commission receivable mainly derives from
fund administration, fiduciary and global
custody operations.

Different underlying bases and rates are
applicable depending on the underlying
investments, agreed terms and services
provided.

The process of commission receivable
recognition for the Bank includes
significant manual interventions.

Accordingly, the calculation of commission
receivable are considered to be a key
audit matter due to the significance of
the amounts involved, combined with the
complexity and operational risk associated
with determining the calculation of the

commission receivable.

We obtained an understanding of the
commission receivable recognition process,
and we reviewed key controls in the
process. Due to deficiencies identified
related to the manual processing of
commission receivable, we did not use a
control reliance approach and our
assurance was obtained based on
substantive audit procedures, consisting
of a combination of tests of details and
substantive analytical procedures.

We developed expectations for the
aggregate amounts per type of commission
income and we compared the expectations to
the amounts recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:
we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions. This also included the
reconciliation of the underlying basis
to external evidence;
we agreed the receipt of the commissions
to subsequent payments.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual
accounts and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the annual
accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
annual accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to
the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Bank®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank®s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the annual accounts

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors®™ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the Réviseur d*Entreprises Agréé to the
related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé by the Board of Directors on March 9,
2018 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 44 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in
accordance with legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation No
537/2014, on the audit profession were not provided and that we remain independent of the
Bank in conducting the audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Martin Flaunet, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

March 8, 2019
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